
 

 

AGENDA 

 

STORMWATER COMMITTEE 

 

Tuesday, February 10th, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

Department of Public Works 

451 Commerce Street 

 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER 

 

 

2) ROLL CALL 

 

 

3) APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 11, 2014 MINUTES 

4) UPDATE REGARDING STREAM CLEAN-UP MAILING TO PROPERTY 

OWNERS WITH STREAM FRONTAGE 

5) PRESENTATION OF PUBLIC INFORMATION CAMPAIGN MATERIALS 

RELATIVE TO STORMWATER 

6) PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION OF DUPAGE COUNTY STORMWATER 

ASSESSMENT SURVEY 

7) AUDIENCE DISCUSSION 

 

 

8) ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

DISTRIBUTION: 

 

Trustee Guy Franzese, 

                 Chairperson 

Trustee Al Paveza 

Trustee Leonard Ruzak 

Wayne Mrjenovich 

William Wilcox 

Nancy Montelbano 

Alice Krampits 

Steve Stricker 

Paul May 

 

 



 
 

M E M O  
 

 

To: Chairperson Guy Franzese & Members of the Village of Burr Ridge Stormwater 

Committee  

From:  Paul D. May, P.E., Director of Public Works & Village Engineer 

Date:  February 5, 2015 

Subject: Agenda Summary for the February 10th Stormwater Committee Meeting 

              

Following, please find a summary of the items which are on the agenda for the February 10th, 2015 

Stormwater Committee meeting: 

1) Call to Order 

2)  Roll Call 

3)  Approval of Minutes from the November 11, 2014 Stormwater Committee Meeting: 

The minutes from the subject meeting are attached for consideration, Attachment 1 (page 4). 

4)  Update Regarding Stream Clean-up Mailing to Property Owners with Stream Frontage: 

The Stormwater Committee has previously discussed the importance of sending out a stream 

maintenance letter every spring to property owners with stream’s on their property.  The 

Department of Public Works has prepared a letter and address list to this effect, and will distribute 

the letters in early March.  Resident’s may utilize the Village’s Spring Brush Pick-up program to 

dispose of appropriate woody material.  See Attachment 2, page 8. 

5)  Presentation of Public Information Campaign Materials Relative to Stormwater 

Public Works staff have developed a number of public information pamphlets and Public-Access 

TV documents to provide additional information relative to the stormwater system and 

maintenance of the same.  These documents are available at the Village Hall, Public Works 

Department, Village web-site, and on a rotating basis on the Village’s public access TV channel.  

The topics covered by these documents include the following (See Attachment 3A – 3F, pages 9 

– 18): 

 Clean Water Tips for Households 

 Drainage FAQ’s 

1



 

 

 

 

 

 Rain Gardens 

 Streambank Stabilization 

 Stream Maintenance 

 Water Conservation 

6)  Presentation/Discussion of DuPage County Stormwater Assessment Survey 

During 2014, DuPage County disseminated a Stormwater Assessment survey among DuPage 

County Communities.  The results of this survey, as well as a summary response letter from the 

DuPage Mayor’s and Manager’s group.  The County has periodically considered implementation 

of a stormwater fee, through which the County would collect revenue based upon impervious area 

of each parcel in the County, and utilize that funding for stormwater projects.  Such a program 

may not be particularly beneficial to Burr Ridge, as we are a dual-county community with no 

significant flooding issues, and little impact from DuPage County watersheds.  If such a program 

were implemented in DuPage County, it may result in the collection of a fee from Burr Ridge 

property owners, with a disproportionately small return.  Some in the DuPage County municipal 

community are concerned that the assessment survey may serve the purpose of reviving the 

consideration of a DuPage County stormwater fee.  An excerpt from the DMMC letter to DuPage 

County summarizes these concerns very well: 

“The County Stormwater Program has successfully met the core service needs of 

municipalities.  While implementation of higher levels of service is always desired, such 

decisions must be made with knowledge of the increased costs and method of funding.  In 

addition, municipal response to funding options will likely be dependent on the procedures for 

determining where funds will be spent for projects such as revised floodplain mapping, 

watershed studies, and flood control projects. A prioritization or selection process that shows 

funding is distributed in a fair and equitable manner, and prioritizes spending throughout all 

watersheds in the County, is critical. This is preferable to a system that continually collects 

funds in areas of the County which rarely receive benefits from County stormwater projects.  

Our members strongly urge that additional municipal input on the scope of the County’s 

Stormwater Management Program be sought after the costs and funding issues are more 

defined.”  (DMMC letter to DuPage County, 12/12/2014). 

This item is presented for information / discussion purposes.  Director of Public Works, Paul May 

will discuss the findings of the survey, and will be prepared to answer any questions from the 

committee members.  See Attachments 4A – 4C, pages 20 – 72. 

 

  

AFTER 

2



 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

1 Minutes, November 11, 2014  .................................................................... page 4 

2 2015 Stream Maintenance letter, DPW ..................................................... page 8 

3A Clean Water Tips for Households.............................................................. page 9 

3B Drainage FAQs........................................................................................ page 10 

3C Rain Gardens ........................................................................................... page 12 

3D Streambank Stabilization ......................................................................... page 14 

3E Stream Maintenance ................................................................................ page 16 

3F Water Conservation ................................................................................. page 18 

4A DuPage County Stormwater Needs Assessment ...................................... page 20 

4B DMMC Response Letter to DuPage County RE: Needs Assessment ....... page 71 

4C DuPage County definition of “Regional Project” ................................... page 72 

 

  

AFTER 

3



MINUTES 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING 

November 11, 2014 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Guy Franzese called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM 
  
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Chairman Guy Franzese, Trustee Len Ruzak, Nancy Montelbano, Alice Krampits, 
Wayne Mrjenovich 
 
Absent:  Trustee Al Paveza, Wil Wilcox 
 
Also Present: Village Administrator Steve Stricker, Public Works Director/Village Engineer 
Paul May  
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Nancy Montelbano to approve the minutes of July 15, 2014. The 
motion was seconded by Alice Krampits and approved by a vote of 4-0, with Len Ruzak 
abstaining. 
 
STORMWATER SEMINAR OFFERED BY DU PAGE COUNTY 
 
Public Works Director Paul May indicated that DuPage County and the Conservation 
Foundation are offering a free Stormwater Seminar on November 20 at Benedictine 
University from 4:00 to 6:00 p.m. He stated that Committee members that would like to 
attend can RSVP directly to the Conservation Foundation. Chairman Franzese suggested that 
this information be sent to the Homeowners’ Association presidents. In response, Mr. May 
stated that he believed that the notice had already been sent to the HOA presidents, but if 
not, he would send it out to them. 
 
WOODCREEK HOA OUTLOT MAINTENANCE 
 
Public Works Director Paul May reminded the Committee that, in the spring and early 
summer of 2014, the Village was contacted by area residents and DuPage County Staff 
relative to stream maintenance along the regulatory flood plain of the 62nd Street ditch. The 
issue in question was in regard to maintenance of the Woodcreek HOA outlot, particularly in 
regards to periodic removal of floatable debris from the flood plain. He indicated that the 
HOA was not originally responsive to our request to have the stream cleaned and, therefore, 
this issue was presented to the Stormwater Committee at its last meeting. Mr. May stated 
that subsequent to the last Stormwater Committee meeting, he held a meeting with the 
representatives of the Woodcreek HOA and surrounding neighbors on July 21, which was 
very constructive, and as a result of that meeting, the Woodcreek HOA completed all the 
necessary work to clean the stream to the satisfaction of the Village. Mr. May presented some 
before and after photos showing that this work had been completed. He stated that, in the 



area along the Village right-of-way, the Public Works Department helped clean the area and 
that he will be watching in the future to make sure that the HOA continues to maintain this 
area as necessary. 
 
In response to a question from Committee member Wayne Mrjenovich as to why they finally 
complied, Mr. May stated that he believed that it was because they knew that the Stormwater 
Committee reviewed this issue in July and directed Staff to take legal action if they didn’t 
comply. 
 
Chairperson Franzese complimented Mr. May in coordinating this work. He stated that the 
area looks much better and that, as a result, it will be much easier to maintain in the future. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Len Ruzak regarding the last time we sent 
notifications to HOAs to maintain their streams, PW Director May stated that he usually 
sends out letters to residents in the spring. Trustee Ruzak suggested that letters be sent to 
residents who are adjacent to the 79th Street ditch, especially along Hamilton Avenue, to ask 
them to clean their stream. Mr. May stated that he would also send letters to these residents 
in the spring, which he felt was the better time to do so prior to the spring brush pickup 
program. He stated that he would send letters in the spring to residents along the 62nd Street 
ditch and Flagg Creek as well. 
 
DRAINAGE CONCERNS BETWEEN CARRIAGE WAY CONDOS AND TOWER DRIVE 
 
Chairman Franzese stated that he was contacted by representatives of the Carriage Way 
Condo Association regarding the volume of water and associated erosion along the HOA 
south lot line, which is adjacent to the Tower Drive industrial properties and asked that this 
item be placed on the agenda. 
 
Mr. May stated that he reviewed the site and has discussed this issue with affected residents. 
He stated that the Carriage Way Condo Association representatives have identified the 
Tower Drive properties as a partial source of the runoff. He stated that the industrial 
properties on Tower Drive were developed prior to the requirement for stormwater storage 
detention facilities and, therefore, most of the properties along Tower Drive were permitted 
without detention according to the regulations at that time. He stated that, if properties on 
Tower Drive were to be redeveloped, they may be required to install a detention facility in 
accordance with current regulations. 
 
Mr. May stated that he and Chairman Franzese inspected the site on Friday, September 5, 
and on other occasions have independently observed the drainage way under high flow 
conditions. He stated that his initial discussions with the HOA indicated that they would like 
to facilitate a solution that eliminates or reduces the apparent source of runoff from the 
Tower Drive industrial properties. He indicated that State law does not allow for drainage to 
be blocked, but that there are some other low-cost things that they could do to help the 
problem. 
 
In response to a question from Committee member Mrjenovich, Mr. Harry Levi, of the 
Carriage Way Condo Association stated that the problem has come up in the last year or two. 



He stated that they have consulted with an engineer who indicated that it would cost 
$150,000-$200,000 to fix the problem. 
 
The issue of drainage law was discussed. PW Director May stated that the higher elevation 
property has the right to drain water onto the property that is lower in elevation than them. 
The lower property has the right to manage the water runoff, but not to obstruct it. 
 
In response to a question regarding whether the Carriage Way Club stormwater system, 
which is located downstream from Carriage Way Condos, is large enough to handle large 
storms, Mr. May stated that there would be some severe storm events that will exceed the 
capacity of the pipe, but that the surface overflow routes are designed to convey the excess 
flow 
 
In response to a question from Mrs. Pat Bolin, resident of the Carriage Way Condos, Mr. May 
stated that the large pond into which the Carriage Way Club drains is the responsibility of 
the Park District. 
 
After some additional discussion, the homeowners thanked the Committee and Mr. May for 
listening to their concerns. Mrs. Bolin stated that they don’t want to cause additional 
problems for the properties downstream, which would be the Carriage Way Club 
Subdivision, and would work with their engineer and the Village Engineer to ensure that is 
the case. 
 
79TH STREET DITCH FLOODPLAIN 
 
Public Works Director Paul May indicated that he distributed engineering studies regarding 
the 79th Street ditch and that it has been studied on at least four occasions over the years by 
various engineering firms. He stated that the road can be raised, but that it would be 
extremely costly. In respond to a question from Committee member Alice Krampits, Mr. May 
stated that he has been contacted by resident Pat Svatos, who had previously stated concerns 
regarding cattails growing on her property. Ms. Krampits also stated that she felt that Mr. 
Layland might be filling his property. In response, Mr. May stated that Mr. Layland can fill in 
certain areas, but not in the floodplain and, if he does, residents should call Mr. May so that 
he can investigate. 
 
The issue of why stormwater does not flow well over land from Drew Avenue to County Line 
Road in major storms was discussed. Mr. May stated that the major reason why this is the 
case is because the area is so flat and the difference in elevation is only 6 inches between 
Drew Avenue and County Line Road. He stated that the stormwater system is set up in a saw-
tooth type of design where little pockets are designed to hold and fill up with water before it 
flows overland, and then it fills up the next section, all the way along the line. In response to 
a question from Administrator Stricker, Mr. May stated that the storm sewer from Drew 
Avenue to County Line Road was last rodded in 2010. 
 
The Committee briefly discussed the possibility of a project on the Layland property that 
would detain additional storm water. Again, Mr. May stated that, although it may be feasible, 
it would be extremely expensive and would not eliminate flooding. Administrator Stricker 



stated that this issue was looked at in great detail when the County created the Flagg Creek 
Watershed Plan back in 1997 and they deemed that that project was not grant worthy. 
 
In summary, PW Director May once again indicated that the road could be raised out of the 
floodplain, but that it would cost millions of dollars and there would be no guarantee that it 
still would not flood in major storms. 
 
Committee member Mrjenovich stated that he agreed that there was no cost-effective 
solution to this problem. Committee member Nancy Montelbano suggested that this issue 
once again be tabled indefinitely. 
 
AUDIENCE DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Krampits, of 7515 Drew Avenue, stated that his property is lower than his neighbors and 
that his property is ponding. PW Director May stated that he has visited the site and 
understands the concern and suggested that Mr. Krampits consider the possibility of raising 
his property to allow the water to flow from the high end to the low end. He once again 
referred to the land owner’s rights information that he had provided the Committee 
members, which would dictate what Mr. Krampits could and could not do to fix his low spot. 
 
Problems associated with drainage in the Bartlett Estates Subdivision were discussed and 
PW director May indicated that, during the time the subdivision was developed back in the 
1950s or before, there was no requirement for stormwater detention and, therefore, no 
engineering records existed. In response to a question from Committee member Mrjenovich, 
Mr. May stated that newer subdivisions that do have engineering plans can be checked to see 
if something had changed on the site and that the Village could then take action against a 
property owner if it was determined that changes had been made illegally. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, a motion was made by Trustee Len Ruzak to adjourn the 
meeting.  The motion was seconded by Nancy Montelbano and approved by a vote of 5-0.  
The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
  
Respectively submitted, 
 
 
 
Steve Stricker 
Village Administrator 
 
SS:bp 





C
le

a
n

 W
a
te

r 
T

ip
s
 f

o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

•
A
lw

a
y
s
 r

e
a
d
 c

h
e
m

ic
a
l 
la

b
e
ls

 o
n
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 a
n
d
 

d
is

p
o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
m

 p
ro

p
e
rl

y
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 

th
ro

w
 t

h
e
m

 d
o
w

n
 t

h
e
 

d
ra

in
. 
If

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 u

s
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
ts

. 

•
U

s
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 u

s
in

g
 

c
le

a
n
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
ts

 o
r 

d
e
te

rg
e
n
ts

. 

•
D

ry
 o

u
t 

u
n
u
s
e
d
 p

a
in

t 
o
r 

a
d
h
e
s
iv

e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

d
is

p
o
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
m

 i
n
 l
iq

u
id

 f
o
rm

 

•
U

ti
li
z
e
 n

a
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
ts

 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

la
w

n
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
 l
it
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 w

a
te

r 
o
r 

fe
rt

il
iz

e
r.
 

•
R
e
c
y
c
le

 m
o
to

r 
o
il
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
h
e
m

ic
a
ls

 a
t 

a
n
 a

u
to

 s
h
o
p
 

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 c

e
n
te

r.
 D

o
 n

o
t 

d
u
m

p
 t

h
e
m

 
d
o
w

n
 t

h
e
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
. 

 M
a
n
y
 o

il
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 s

to
re

s
 w

il
l 
ta

k
e
 

y
o
u
r 

u
s
e
d
 o

il
 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
. 

•
W

a
s
h
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

t 
a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
c
a
r 

w
a
s
h
 o

r 
o
n
 n

o
n
-

p
a
v
e
d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
s
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 r
u
n
o
ff
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

to
rm

 s
e
w

e
r.
 

•
C
o
m

p
o
s
t 

o
r 

re
c
y
c
le

 y
a
rd

 w
a
s
te

 s
o
 i
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

w
a
s
h
 

d
o
w

n
 t

h
e
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
. 

    

D
o
 n

o
t 

d
u
m

p
 

h
a
z
a
rd

o
u
s
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
d
o
w

n
 

th
e
 d

ra
in

. 
R
e
a
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
b
e
l 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 
p
ro

p
e
rl

y
 

U
s
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

c
a
r 

w
a
s
h
 o

r 
w

a
s
h
 

y
o
u
r 

c
a
r 

o
n
 a

 
n
o
n
-p

a
v
e
d
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 

C
l e

a
n
 u

p
 a

ft
e
r 

y
o
u
r 

p
e
ts

 s
o
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
n
te

r 
th

e
 

s
to

rm
 s

e
w

e
r 



P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
: 
M

o
n

d
a

y 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

 F
ri

d
a

y,
 7

 a
.m

. 
to

 3
:3

0
 p

.m
. 

 

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

D
ra

in
a

g
e

  
F

A
Q

 

S
to

rm
 w

a
te

r 
w

o
rk

 m
u

s
t 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

’s
 s

to
rm

 w
a

te
r 

o
rd

in
a

n
c
e

, 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 a
t 

w
w

w
.b

u
rr

-

ri
d

g
e

.g
o

v
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 t

a
b

. 

W
h

e
n

e
v
e

r 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 

th
e

 p
u

b
li
c
 R

ig
h

t 
o

f 
W

a
y,

 a
 p

e
rm

it
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 

R
id

g
e

. 
T
h

e
 p

e
rm

it
 a

p
p

li
c
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 

fo
u

n
d

 a
t 

  
w

w
w

.b
u

rr
-r

id
g
e

.g
o

v 
in

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 

ta
b

. 
 A

ls
o

, 
w

h
e

n
e

v
e

r,
 w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
yo

u
 d

ig
 

yo
u

 m
u

s
t 

c
a

ll
 J

U
L
IE

  
(#

8
1

1
) 

to
 l
o

c
a

te
 

yo
u

r 
u

ti
li
ti

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 s

to
ra

g
e

 o
f 

to
p

s
o

il
, 
g
ra

v
e

l,
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

fi
ll
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
in

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

 i
s
 

p
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 v

il
la

g
e

 d
o

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti

o
n

s
 u

p
o

n
 

re
q

u
e

s
t.

  
If

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

 t
h

e
y 

s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 

R
id

g
e

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 D

iv
is

io
n

 (
6

3
0

-3
2

3
-

4
7

3
3

).
  

TH
IN

G
S

 T
O

 K
N

O
W

 

A
 V

er
y 

S
p

ec
ia

l 
P

la
ce

 

V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 
P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

V
il

la
g

e 
o

f 
B

u
rr

 R
id

g
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
of

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
k

s 

http://www.burr-ridge.gov/Departments/CommunityDevelopment/BuildingPermits.html
http://www.burr-ridge.gov/Departments/CommunityDevelopment/BuildingPermits.html


Q
: 

A
m

 I
, 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r,
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
ra

in
s
 o

n
 m

y 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y?
 

A
: 

Y
e

s
, 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
o

w
n

e
r 

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

h
is

/
h

e
r 

o
w

n
 d

ra
in

s
. 

T
h

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 c

le
a

ri
n

g
 o

u
t 

d
e

b
ri

s
 o

r 
ro

o
ts

 i
n

 

th
e

 d
ra

in
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
to

ri
n

g
 b

ro
k

e
n

 d
ra

in
s
 o

r 

in
le

ts
. 

 Q
: 

W
h

a
t 

c
a

u
s
e

s
 a

 s
e

w
e

r 
to

 b
e

 b
lo

c
k
e

d
?

 

A
: 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

n
y 

re
a

s
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

d
ra

in
s
 t

o
 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 b
lo

c
k

e
d

. 
 S

o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 

a
re

: 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 l
e

a
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 

b
ra

n
c
h

e
s
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
 i
n

le
t,

 d
e

te
ri

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ip

e
 j
o

in
ts

, 
p

ip
e

 s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t,

  
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

d
e

fe
c
ts

, 
c
o

ll
a

p
s
e

, 
d

e
b

ri
s
 &

 s
il
t 

b
u

il
d

 u
p

, 

tr
e

e
 r

o
o

t 
in

tr
u

s
io

n
, 
a

n
d

 v
e

h
ic

u
la

r 

lo
a

d
in

g
. 

 Q
: 

M
y 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

r 
h

a
s
 d

o
n

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 

h
is

/
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y 

a
n

d
 n

o
w

 I
 a

m
 g

e
tt

in
g

 

m
o

re
 r

u
n

o
ff

, 
w

h
a

t 
c
a

n
 I
 d

o
?

 

A
: 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 a
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 

V
il
la

g
e

 c
o

d
e

 f
o

r 
o

n
e

 l
o

t 
to

 d
ra

in
 o

n
to

 

a
n

o
th

e
r,

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t

ry
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
lo

t 
to

 h
e

lp
 y

o
u

r 
ya

rd
 d

ra
in

 

m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

ly
. 

 D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 

s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

, 
it

 m
a

y 
b

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

s
ta

te
 c

o
d

e
 t

o
 

d
iv

e
rt

 o
r 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

 r
u

n
o

ff
, 

o
r 

b
lo

c
k

 

ru
n

o
ff

 f
ro

m
 d

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
to

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y.

  

W
e

 a
d

v
is

e
 t

h
a

t 
yo

u
 m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
w

a
rd

 a
 m

u
tu

a
ll
y 

a
g
re

e
a

b
le

 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

. 
 I

f 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
, 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

n
g
 s

w
a

le
s
 o

r 
in

s
ta

ll
in

g
 u

n
d

e
r-

d
ra

in
s
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
to

 c
o

n
v
e

y 
th

e
 

ru
n

o
ff

 a
ro

u
n

d
 y

o
u

r 
h

o
m

e
. 

F
o

r 
m

o
re

 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 c
a

ll
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 

W
o

rk
s
 a

t 
6

3
0

) 
3

2
3

-4
7

3
3

. 

D
ra

in
a

g
e

  
F
A
Q
’s

  

Q
: 

A
ft

e
r 

it
 r

a
in

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
u

d
d

le
 i
n

 m
y 

s
tr

e
e

t 
g

u
tt

e
r.

  
W

il
l 
th

e
 V

il
la

g
e

 r
e

p
a

ir
 t

h
e

 

s
tr

e
e

t 
to

 e
li
m

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 g
u

tt
e

r 
p

o
n

d
in

g
?

 

A
: 

P
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 

W
o

rk
s
 a

t 
(6

3
0

) 
3

2
3

-4
7

3
3

 a
n

d
 w

e
 w

il
l 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 i
f 

yo
u

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
is

 p
u

b
li
c
ly

 o
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
ly

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
. 

 I
f 

yo
u

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
is

 

p
u

b
li
c
, 

w
e

 w
il
l 
p

la
c
e

 y
o

u
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 l
is

t 

a
n

d
 i
t 

w
il
l 
b

e
 s

u
rv

e
ye

d
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
n

 a
 r

a
ti

n
g
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
e

v
e

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

. 
If

 y
o

u
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 a
 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, 

th
e

n
 i
t 

is
 t

h
e

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y 
o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
o

w
n

e
rs

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

r 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
h

o
m

e
o

w
n

e
r 

to
 

c
o

rr
e

c
t 

th
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
. 

 Q
: 

T
h

e
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
 s

ys
te

m
 o

n
 m

y 
s
tr

e
e

t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
e

a
r 

to
 b

e
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

in
g

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 

a
s
 i
t 

u
s
e

d
 t

o
. 

 W
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 t

h
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 d
o

?
 

A
: 

P
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 

W
o

rk
s
 a

t 
(6

3
0

) 
3

2
3

-4
7

3
3

. 
 T

h
e

 s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

 

s
ys

te
m

 m
a

y 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 c
lo

g
g
e

d
. 

 I
f 

th
e

re
 

is
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

it
h

 a
 p

u
b

li
c
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
 

s
ys

te
m

, 
w

e
 c

a
n

 i
n

s
p

e
c
t 

fo
r 

b
lo

c
k

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 

re
m

o
v
e

 d
e

b
ri

s
 i
f 

p
re

s
e

n
t.

  
If

 t
h

e
 s

ys
te

m
 i
s
 

p
ri

v
a

te
, 

th
e

n
 i
t 

is
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y 
o

f 
th

e
 

h
o

m
e

o
w

n
e

rs
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

r 
th

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

h
o

m
e

o
w

n
e

r 
to

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 s
ys

te
m

. 

 Q
: 

M
y 

d
ri

ve
w

a
y 

c
u

lv
e

rt
 h

a
s
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 

c
lo

g
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

d
ra

in
s
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y.
  

W
il
l 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 c
o

m
e

 o
u

t 
a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

 o
u

t 
m

y 

c
u

lv
e

rt
?

 

A
: 

N
o

, 
e

a
c
h

 h
o

m
e

o
w

n
e

r 
is

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
le

a
n

in
g
 o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 c
u

lv
e

rt
. 

       

Q
:  

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
in

 m
y 

ya
rd

 

a
ft

e
r 

e
ve

ry
 r

a
in

fa
ll
, 

h
o

w
 c

a
n

 I
 f

ix
 t

h
is

?
 A

n
d

 

w
il
l 
th

e
 V

il
la

g
e

 h
e

lp
 p

a
y 

fo
r 

th
e

 r
e

p
a

ir
?

 

A
: 

 O
n

e
 w

a
y 

to
 r

e
li
e

v
e

 t
h

is
 p

ro
b

le
m

 i
s
 t

o
 

r e
f i

n
e

 t
h

e
 p

it
c
h

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 

it
 

h
a

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

lo
p

e
 t

o
 l
e

t 
th

e
 s

to
rm

 

w
a

te
r 

fl
o

w
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

. 
A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

ly
, 

yo
u

 c
a

n
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

s
w

a
le

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

h
a

llo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 d
it

c
h

, 
to

 r
e

d
ir

e
c
t 

th
e

 w
a

te
r 

o
ff

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y,

 u
s
u

a
ll
y 

to
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
e

t.
 F

in
a

ll
y,

 y
o

u
 

c
a

n
 i
n

s
ta

ll
 d

ry
 w

e
ll
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r-
d

ra
in

s
 t

o
 

fl
o

w
 o

ff
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y.
 U

n
d

e
r-

d
ra

in
s
 c

a
n

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

n
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 a

 v
il
la

g
e

 s
to

rm
 

s
e

w
e

r 
s
o

 l
o

n
g
 a

s
 y

o
u

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 p

e
rm

it
. 

 

    

      

 If
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 a

n
y 

q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g

e
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
(6

3
0

) 
3

2
3

-

4
7

3
3

  

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

 V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

D
a

m
a

g
e

d
, 

s
h

o
w

n
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
o

r 
b

lo
c
k
e

d
 

c
u

lv
e

rt
s
 a

re
 t

h
e

 h
o

m
e

o
w

n
e

rs
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
i-

b
il
it

y 
to

 r
e

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
n

 

E
x a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

n
 

u
n

d
e

r 
d

ra
in

 w
it

h
 

a
 c

a
tc

h
 b

a
s
in

  

E
xa

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

 d
o

w
n

s
p

o
u

t 

th
a

t 
d

ra
in

s
 i
n

to
 a

 d
ry

 w
e

ll
 



P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
: 
M

o
n

d
a

y 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

 F
ri

d
a

y,
 7

 a
.m

. 
to

 3
 p

.m
. 

 

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

R
a

in
  

G
a

rd
e

n
 

S
to

rm
 w

a
te

r 
re

p
a

ir
s
 m

u
s
t 

fo
ll
o

w
 t

h
e

 

s
to

rm
 w

a
te

r 
o

rd
in

a
n

c
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 a

t 

w
w

w
.b

u
rr

-r
id

g
e

.g
o

v
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t.
 

W
h

e
n

e
v
e

r 
a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
is

 b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

W
a

y,
 o

r 
v
il
la

g
e

 e
a

s
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
m

u
s
t 

a
tt

a
in

 a
 p

e
rm

it
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

. 
T
h

e
 p

e
rm

it
 

a
p

p
li
c
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 a

t 
  

w
w

w
.b

u
rr

-r
id

g
e

.g
o

v
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t.
 W

h
e

n
e

v
e

r 

yo
u

 d
ig

 y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

c
a

ll
 J

U
L
IE

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

te
 

th
e

 u
ti

li
ti

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

xc
a

va
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
. 

T
h

e
 V

il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
ts

 t
h

e
 

s
to

ra
g
e

 o
f 

to
p

s
o

il
, 

g
ra

v
e

l,
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fi
ll
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

. 
T
h

e
 v

il
la

g
e

 

o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 d
o

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

lo
o

d
 

d
e

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

If
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

  
V

il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 D

iv
is

io
n

 (
6

3
0

-3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
).

 

TH
IN

G
S

 T
O

 K
N

O
W

 

A
 V

er
y 

S
p

ec
ia

l 
P

la
ce

 

V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 
P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

V
il

la
g

e 
o

f 
B

u
rr

 R
id

g
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
of

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
k

s 

http://www.burr-ridge.gov/Departments/CommunityDevelopment/BuildingPermits.html
http://www.burr-ridge.gov/Departments/CommunityDevelopment/BuildingPermits.html


 W
h

a
t 

is
 a

 R
a

in
 

G
a

rd
e

n
?  

B
en

ef
it

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

M
a

n
y 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 i
n

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 a
re

 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y 
p

o
ll
u

ta
n

ts
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 i
n

 w
a

te
r 

th
a

t 

ru
n

s
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 u
rb

a
n

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

. 
T
h

e
s
e

 

p
o

ll
u

ta
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
xc

e
s
s
 n

u
tr

ie
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

p
e

s
ti

c
id

e
s
 f

ro
m

 l
a

w
n

 c
h

e
m

ic
a

ls
 a

n
d

 p
e

t 

w
a

s
te

. 
R

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
s
 h

o
ld

 w
a

te
r 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 

u
rb

a
n

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

, 
s
o

 t
h

e
y 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 f

il
te

r 

in
to

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
a

m
s
. 

 N
at

iv
e 

L
an

d
sc

ap
in

g
 

Il
li
n

o
is

’ 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
h

is
to

ry
 c

o
n

s
is

ts
 o

f 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti

v
e

 p
ra

ir
ie

s
, 
o

p
e

n
 w

o
o

d
la

n
d

s
, 

a
n

d
 

w
e

tl
a

n
d

s
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 n

a
ti

v
e

 t
o

 

th
e

s
e

 h
a

b
it

a
ts

 t
h

ri
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 I

ll
in

o
is

 

la
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

. 
N

a
ti

v
e

 p
la

n
ts

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e

 

a
e

s
th

e
ti

c
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

v
e

 

w
il
d

fl
o

w
e

rs
 a

n
d

 g
ra

s
s
e

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 b
e

a
u

ti
fu

l 

c
o

lo
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
p

ri
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
a

ll
. 

N
a

ti
v
e

 

p
la

n
ts

 a
ls

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

b
u

tt
e

rf
li
e

s
, 

b
ir

d
s
, 

d
ra

g
o

n
 f

li
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
 h

u
m

m
in

g
b

ir
d

s
. 

           W
h

e
n

 c
h

o
o

s
in

g
 p

la
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
 r

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
 

n
a

ti
v
e

 p
la

n
ts

 w
il
l 
b

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

it
a

b
le

  

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
y 

a
re

 a
c
c
u

s
to

m
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

g
ro

w
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 d
o

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

fe
rt

il
iz

e
r.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 l
e

s
s
 f

lo
o

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
a

te
r 

q
u

a
li
ty

 w
it

h
 n

a
ti

v
e

 

p
la

n
ts

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
ro

o
ts

. 
T
h

e
 

l o
n

g
 r

o
o

ts
 t

a
k

e
 i
n

 m
o

re
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 f
il
te

r 

p
o

ll
u

ta
n

ts
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

y 
re

a
c
h

 s
u

rf
a

c
e

 

w
a

te
rs

. 

             T
h

e 
T

ru
th

 a
b

o
u

t 
N

at
iv

e 
P

la
n

ts
 


 

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

p
la

n
ts

 n
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

M
id

w
e

s
t 

d
o

 n
o

t 
a

g
g
ra

v
a

te
 a

ll
e

rg
ie

s
. 

N
a

ti
v
e

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 c

a
n

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

a
n

y 
a

ll
e

rg
e

n
-p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 

p
la

n
ts

. 


 

E
v
e

n
 t

h
o

u
g
h

 n
a

ti
v
e

 p
la

n
ts

 d
o

 a
tt

ra
c
t 

d
ra

g
o

n
fl

ie
s
, 

b
u

tt
e

rf
li
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
s
e

c
ts

, 
th

e
y 

a
ls

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

in
s
e

c
t 

e
a

ti
n

g
 b

ir
d

s
 t

o
 t

h
a

t 
k

e
e

p
 i
n

s
e

c
t 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
n

 c
h

e
c
k

. 


 

If
 y

o
u

 d
o

 n
o

t 
w

a
n

t 
ta

ll
 g

ra
s
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
s
h

o
rt

e
r 

w
il
d

fl
o

w
e

rs
 a

n
d

 g
ra

s
s
e

s
. 

 If
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 a

n
y 

q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g

e
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 W

o
rk

s
 a

t 
(6

3
0

) 
3

2
3

-

4
7

3
3

  

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

 V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

A
 r

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
 i
s
 a

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

te
c
h

n
iq

u
e

 o
f 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 a

 g
a

rd
e

n
 b

e
d

 i
n

 a
 l
o

w
 a

re
a

 t
h

a
t 

a
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

s
 w

a
te

r 
a

ft
e

r 
a

 s
to

rm
. 

It
 i
s
 

u
s
u

a
ll
y 

p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 n
a

ti
v
e

 w
e

tl
a

n
d

 

p
la

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 a
c
c
u

s
to

m
e

d
 t

o
 w

e
t 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 

R
a

in
  
g
a

rd
e

n
s
 a

ls
o

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 

c
o

ll
e

c
t 

a
n

d
 f

il
te

r 
ra

in
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 a
ll
o

w
 i
t 

to
 s

e
e

p
 n

a
tu

ra
ll
y 

in
to

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

. 
T
h

is
 

re
d

u
c
e

s
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
o

ll
u

ta
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 

ra
in

 w
a

te
r 

ru
n

o
ff

 c
a

rr
ie

s
 t

o
 s

tr
e

a
m

s
. 

 D
yn

am
ic

s 
o

f 
a 

R
ai

n
 G

ar
d

en
 

A
 r

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
 h

a
s
 a

 d
e

p
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
id

d
le

 t
o

 h
o

ld
 t

h
e

 r
a

in
 w

a
te

r.
 T

h
e

 

d
e

p
re

s
s
io

n
 i
s
  

fr
o

m
 2

 t
o

 6
 i
n

c
h

e
s
 i
f 

yo
u

 

p
re

fe
r 

n
o

t 
to

 h
a

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

in
g
 w

a
te

r,
 o

r 
u

p
 

to
 1

8
 i
n

c
h

e
s
 i
f 

yo
u

 p
re

fe
r 

a
 p

o
n

d
-l
ik

e
 

g
a

rd
e

n
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
p

re
s
s
io

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 

g
e

n
tl

e
 s

lo
p

in
g
 s

id
e

s
 s

o
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
ts

 c
a

n
 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h

e
d

. 
 R

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
s
 a

re
 

u
s
u

a
ll
y 

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 w
h

e
re

 w
a

te
r 

a
lr

e
a

d
y 

d
ra

in
s
, 

o
r 

a
n

 a
re

a
 d

o
w

n
-s

lo
p

e
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
r 

d
o

w
n

s
p

o
u

ts
 o

r 
s
u

m
p

 p
u

m
p

 o
u

tl
e

t.
 T

h
e

 

g
a

rd
e

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
lo

p
e

 a
w

a
y 

fr
o

m
 y

o
u

r 

h
o

u
s
e

 s
o

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

rf
lo

w
 w

il
l 
n

o
t 

fl
o

o
d

 y
o

u
r 

fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

. 

  

E
xa

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

 d
o

w
n

s
p

o
u

t 
d

ra
in

in
g
 

to
 a

 n
e

w
 r

a
in

 g
a

rd
e

n
 

M
o

n
a

rc
h

 b
u

tt
e

rf
li
e

s
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 

v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

n
im

a
ls

 a
re

 

a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 t

o
 n

a
ti

v
e

 p
la

n
ts

 

Q
u

e
e

n
 A

n
n

e
’s

 L
a

c
e

 i
s
 o

n
e

 e
xa

m
p

le
 o

f 

a
 n

a
ti

v
e

 f
lo

w
e

r 
o

f 
Il
li
n

o
is

 



S
T

R
E

A
M

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 &
  

R
E

S
P
O

N
S
IB

IL
IT

Y
 

•
T

h
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
ve

 o
b

st
ru

ct
io

n
s,

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
fa

lle
n

 
tr

e
e

 t
re

e
s 

an
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

b
ri

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 li

e
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
o

w
n

e
r.

 

•
La

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
d

u
ct

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

 s
tr

e
am

 in
sp

e
ct

io
n

s 
tw

ic
e

 a
 y

e
ar

 t
o

 id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
y 

st
re

am
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 
in

sp
e

ct
io

n
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
ad

e
 a

ft
e

r 
la

rg
e

 r
ai

n
fa

ll 
e

ve
n

ts
 o

r 
w

in
d

st
o

rm
s.

  

•
R

e
m

o
va

l o
f 

d
e

b
ri

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

ad
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 lo

w
 f

lo
w

 
p

e
ri

o
d

s,
 u

su
al

ly
 m

id
 t

o
 la

te
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
an

d
 a

u
tu

m
n

.  

•
If

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 a

vo
id

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 m

ac
h

in
e

ry
 in

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 

ch
an

n
e

l b
e

ca
u

se
 t

o
x

ic
 c

h
e

m
ic

al
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

o
il 

an
d

 g
as

o
lin

e
 

m
ay

 le
ak

 in
to

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
, a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

an
ks

 m
ay

 b
e

 
d

e
st

ab
ili

ze
d

 b
y 

th
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 

•
D

o
 n

o
t 

d
u

m
p

 y
ar

d
 w

as
te

 in
to

 a
 s

tr
e

am
 o

r 
p

la
ce

 a
n

y 
ya

rd
 

w
as

te
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
am

 b
an

ks
.  

•
A

lt
e

rn
at

iv
e

ly
, l

e
av

e
 g

ra
ss

 c
lip

p
in

g
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 la

w
n

 o
r 

co
m

p
o

st
 t

h
e

m
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 le
av

e
s 

an
d

 o
th

e
r 

ve
g

e
ta

ti
ve

 
m

at
e

ri
al

 t
o

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 a
n

 a
lt

e
rn

at
iv

e
 t

o
 m

u
lc

h
. 

      

  

 

A
 h

o
m

e
m

ad
e

 c
o

m
p

o
st

 b
in

 t
h

at
 c

an
 b

e
 u

se
d

 
to

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 a
n

 a
lt

e
rn

at
iv

e
 t

o
 m

u
lc

h
  

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
o

w
n

e
r 

w
h

o
 o

w
n

s 
th

is
 lo

t 
is

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
cl

e
ar

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

e
b

ri
s 

 D
e

b
ri

s 
lik

e
 t

h
is

 c
an

 c
au

se
 a

 s
tr

e
am

 t
o

 
b

ac
k 

u
p

, w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 f
lo

o
d

 y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y 



S
T

R
E

A
M

 B
A

N
K

 S
T

A
B

IL
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 
S

t r
e

am
 b

an
k 

e
ro

si
o

n
 is

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
h

ic
h

 c
au

se
s 

d
e

te
ri

o
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

am
b

an
k 

an
d

 d
e

cr
e

as
e

s 
th

e
 w

at
e

r 
q

u
al

it
y 

in
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
am

.  
T

h
e

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s 
ca

n
 d

e
cr

e
as

e
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 f
o

r 
e

ro
si

o
n

: 

•
W

h
e

n
 r

e
m

o
vi

n
g

 a
 t

re
e

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
tr

e
am

 b
an

k,
 b

e
 s

u
re

 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 t
h

e
 r

o
o

t 
sy

st
e

m
 in

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 p

re
ve

n
t 

e
ro

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
e

d
im

e
n

t 
ru

n
 o

ff
.  

•
W

ar
m

 s
e

as
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

t 
w

e
at

h
e

r 
 n

at
iv

e
 g

ra
ss

 s
e

e
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

la
n

te
d

 
w

it
h

in
 1

5 
to

 2
0

 f
e

e
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

e
am

 b
an

k 
o

n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s,

 o
r 

w
h

e
re

ve
r 

to
p

 s
o

il 
is

 e
x

p
o

se
d

. T
h

is
 w

ill
 p

re
ve

n
t 

so
il 

e
ro

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

b
u

ff
e

r 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 f

ro
m

 p
e

st
ic

id
e

s 
an

d
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ch

e
m

ic
al

s.
 

W
h

e
n

 p
la

n
ti

n
g

 s
e

e
d

, e
ro

si
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l b
la

n
ke

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
ti

liz
e

d
 t

o
 

as
si

st
 in

 g
e

rm
in

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 e

ro
si

o
n

.  

•
C

le
an

 r
ip

ra
p

 c
an

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 u

se
d

 t
o

 p
ro

te
ct

 s
tr

e
am

 b
an

ks
 f

ro
m

 e
ro

si
o

n
. 

R
ip

ra
p

 c
an

 b
e

 a
n

yt
h

in
g

 f
ro

m
 s

to
n

e
 t

o
 c

ru
sh

e
d

 u
p

 c
o

n
cr

e
te

 (
e

x
ce

p
t 

it
e

m
s 

th
at

 h
av

e
 c

h
e

m
ic

al
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

as
p

h
al

t)
. 

P
ro

p
e

rl
y 

ve
g

e
ta

te
d

 
st

re
am

 b
an

k
 

E
ro

si
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
b

la
n

k
e

t 
p

ro
te

ct
in

g
 t

h
e

 
st

re
am

 b
an

k
 

C
le

an
 r

ip
ra

p
 

p
ro

te
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 

st
re

am
 b

an
k

 



P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
: 
M

o
n

d
a

y 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

 F
ri

d
a

y,
 7

 a
.m

. 
to

 3
 p

.m
. 

 

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

S
tr

e
a

m
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 

T
h

e
 V

il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
ts

 t
h

e
 

s
to

ra
g
e

 o
f 

to
p

s
o

il
, 

g
ra

v
e

l,
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fi
ll
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

. 
T
h

is
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
c
a

n
 w

a
s
h

 i
n

to
 a

 s
tr

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y 

d
iv

e
rt

 o
r 

e
le

v
a

te
 f

lo
o

d
 

w
a

te
r.

 O
th

e
r 

u
n

s
u

it
a

b
le

 b
u

o
ya

n
t 

 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 l
u

m
b

e
r,

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

, 
a

n
d

 y
a

rd
 w

a
s
te

 c
a

n
 b

lo
c
k

 

c
u

lv
e

rt
s
 a

n
d

 b
ri

d
g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 a
ls

o
 

e
le

v
a

te
 f

lo
o

d
w

a
te

r.
 

T
h

e
 v

il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 d
o

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

fl
o

o
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

If
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 

to
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

, 

p
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 

R
id

g
e

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 D

iv
is

io
n

 a
t 

(6
3

0
-

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
).

 

Fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 A

re
a

s 

A
 V

er
y 

S
p

ec
ia

l 
P

la
ce

 

V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 
P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

V
il

la
g

e 
o

f 
B

u
rr

 R
id

g
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
of

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
k

s 



A
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 o

ft
e

n
 

ra
is

e
d

 b
y 

 

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

 

in
v
o

lv
e

s
 a

 

s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 

d
e

b
ri

s
 a

c
c
u

m
u

la
te

 i
n

 s
tr

e
a

m
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls

 

a
n

d
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ts

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

 f
lo

w
. 
W

h
e

n
 t

h
is

 

o
c
c
u

rs
 i
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 t

o
 f

lo
o

d
in

g
, 
s
tr

e
a

m
 

b
a

n
k

 e
ro

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y 

d
a

m
a

g
e

. 
T
h

e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y 
to

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 o
b

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y 

o
w

n
e

r 
o

r 
h

o
m

e
o

w
n

e
rs

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

L
a

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

ro
u

ti
n

e
 

s
tr

e
a

m
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 t

w
ic

e
 a

 y
e

a
r 

to
 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 s

tr
e

a
m

 o
b

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

s
, 
a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 

in
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
ft

e
r 

la
rg

e
 

ra
in

fa
ll
 e

v
e

n
ts

 o
r 

w
in

d
s
to

rm
s
. 

R
e

m
o

v
a

l 

o
f 

d
e

b
ri

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 “

lo
w

” 

fl
o

w
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
, 

u
s
u

a
ll
y 

m
id

 t
o

 l
a

te
 s

u
m

m
e

r 

o
r 

a
u

tu
m

n
. 

W
h

e
n

 r
e

m
o

v
in

g
 l
o

g
s
 a

n
d

 

d
e

b
ri

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l,
 a

v
o

id
 

p
u

ll
in

g
 o

u
t 

w
h

o
le

 t
re

e
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e

 r
o

o
ts

 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

ly
 d

e
th

a
tc

h
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

s
tr

e
a

m
 b

a
n

k
. 

 A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

ly
, 

c
u

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 

tr
e

e
 t

ru
n

k
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 

S
tr

e
a

m
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
: 

R
es

po
n
si

bi
li

ty
  

 l e
a

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
tu

m
p

 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

 w
il
l 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

s
o

il
 e

ro
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
e

d
im

e
n

t 
ru

n
o

ff
, 

a
s
 t

h
e

 r
o

o
ts

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 s

ta
b

il
iz

e
 t

h
e

 

s
tr

e
a

m
b

a
n

k
. 

If
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

k
e

e
p

 a
ll 

m
a

c
h

in
e

ry
 

fr
o

m
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
 c

h
a

n
n

e
l 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 

to
xi

c
 s

u
b

s
tn

a
c
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 o

il
 a

n
d

 g
a

s
o

li
n

e
 

m
a

y 
le

a
k

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
. 

If
 i
n

-c
h

a
n

n
e

l 

w
o

rk
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

th
e

 V
il
la

g
e

 o
f 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 

D
iv

is
io

n
 (

6
3

0
-3

2
3

-4
7

3
3

).
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 Y

a
rd

 W
a

st
e

 
A

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

b
lo

c
k

a
g
e

 i
n

 s
tr

e
a

m
 

c
h

a
n

n
e

ls
 i
s
 y

a
rd

 w
a

s
te

 t
h

a
t 

is
 d

e
p

o
s
it

e
d

 

in
to

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

 o
r 

a
lo

n
g
 i
ts

 b
a

n
k

s
. 
D

u
ri

n
g
 a

 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
fl

o
o

d
in

g
, 

ya
rd

 w
a

s
te

s
 c

a
n

 

a
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

 b
e

h
in

d
 a

 d
ra

in
 i
n

le
t 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

d
e

b
ri

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 a

 f
a

ll
e

n
 b

ra
n

c
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 

c
a

u
s
e

 a
 b

lo
c
k

a
g
e

. 
T
h

e
re

fo
re

, 
d

o
 n

o
t 

d
u

m
p

 

a
n

y 
ya

rd
 w

a
s
te

 i
n

to
 a

 s
tr

e
a

m
, 

o
r 

p
la

c
e

 a
n

y 

ya
r d

 w
a

s
te

 a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
 b

a
n

k
s
. 
 

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 t

o
 l
e

a
ve

 g
ra

s
s
 

c
li
p

p
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
a

w
n

 o
r 

c
o

m
p

o
s
t 

th
e

m
 w

it
h

 

le
a

v
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

v
e

g
e

ta
ti

v
e

 m
a

te
ri

a
l.
 

 

V e
g

e
ta

ti
o

n
 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

s
te

p
s
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y 

o
w

n
e

rs
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

 t
o

 a
v
o

id
 e

ro
s
io

n
, 

fl
o

o
d

in
g
, 

a
n

d
 w

a
te

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
s
 t

o
 

s
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 v
e

g
e

ta
ti

o
n

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

w
a

te
rw

a
ys

. 
W

a
rm

 s
e

a
s
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

t 

w
e

a
th

e
r 

n
a

ti
v
e

 g
ra

s
s
 s

e
e

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 1

5
 t

o
 2

0
 f

e
e

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

 

b
a

n
k

 o
n

 b
o

th
 s

id
e

s
, 

o
r 

w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
to

p
 s

o
il
 i
s
 

e
xp

o
s
e

d
. 

T
re

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
la

n
te

d
 c

lo
s
e

 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
 w

it
h

 s
h

a
d

e
, 

b
u

t 
n

o
t 

s
o

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

fu
tu

re
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
w

il
l 
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 t

re
e

 t
o

 f
a

ll
 i
n

to
 

th
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
. 

G
ra

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
re

e
 r

o
o

ts
 a

b
s
o

rb
 

w
a

te
r 

ru
n

o
ff

, 
p

re
v
e

n
t 

s
o

il
 e

ro
s
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 w
a

te
r 

q
u

a
li
ty

 b
y 

s
h

a
d

in
g
 s

u
rf

a
c
e

 

w
a

te
r 

a
n

d
 “

b
u

ff
e

ri
n

g
” 

fe
rt

il
iz

e
rs

, 

p
e

s
ti

c
id

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
c
h

e
m

ic
a

ls
 t

h
a

t 

w
o

u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 e
n

d
 u

p
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

. 

  If
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 a

n
y 

q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 

 B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s
 

4
5

1
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
 

B
u

rr
 R

id
g
e

, 
IL

 6
0

5
2

7
 

P
h

o
n

e
: 

(6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
3

3
 

F
a

x:
 (

6
3

0
) 

3
2

3
-4

7
9

8
 

 V
ill

ag
e 

of
 B

ur
r 

R
id

ge
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

k
s 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
o

w
n

e
r 

w
h

o
 o

w
n

s
 

th
is

 l
o

t 
is

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
le

a
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 d
e

b
ri

s
 

A
 h

o
m

e
m

a
d

e
 c

o
m

p
o

s
t 

b
in

 c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 

to
 d

is
p

o
s
e

 o
f 

ya
rd

 w
a

s
te

  



C
o

n
se

rv
e 

w
at

er
 i

n
si

d
e 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
h

o
m

e:
 

•
A

 l
ea

k
y 

fa
u

ce
t 

ca
n

 w
as

te
 u

p
 t

o
 1

50
 g

al
lo

n
s 

a 
m

o
n

th
, a

n
d

 
a 

le
ak

y 
to

il
et

 c
an

 w
as

te
 u

p
 t

o
 2

0
0

 g
al

lo
n

s 
a 

d
ay

. 

•
O

n
ly

 u
se

 y
o

u
r 

d
is

h
w

as
h

er
 w

h
en

 i
t 

is
 f

u
ll

. 

•
K

ee
p

 p
it

ch
er

 o
f 

w
at

er
 i

n
 y

o
u

r 
re

fr
ig

er
at

o
r 

so
 y

o
u

 d
o

n
’t 

h
av

e 
to

 w
as

te
 w

at
er

 w
h

en
 w

ai
ti

n
g

 f
o

r 
yo

u
r 

ta
p

 w
at

er
 t

o
 

ge
t 

co
ld

. 

•
U

se
 a

 c
u

p
 f

u
ll

 o
f 

w
at

er
 w

h
en

 s
h

av
in

g
 i

n
st

ea
d

 o
f 

k
ee

p
in

g
 

yo
u

r 
w

at
er

 o
n

, a
ls

o
 t

u
rn

 t
h

e 
w

at
er

 o
ff

 w
h

il
e 

b
ru

sh
in

g
 

yo
u

r 
te

et
h

. 

•
V

is
it

 h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.w

at
er

u
se

it
w

is
el

y.
co

m
/ 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 

w
at

er
 s

av
in

g
 t

ip
s!

 

http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/


 

C
o

n
se

rv
e 

w
at

er
 o

u
ts

id
e 

o
f 

yo
u

r 
h

o
m

e:
 

•
U

se
 a

 b
ro

o
m

 a
s 

an
 a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

to
 r

in
si

n
g

 a
 d

ri
ve

w
ay

 o
r 

g
ar

ag
e.

 

•
U

se
 a

 d
ri

p
 h

o
se

 t
o

 w
at

er
 y

o
u

r 
g

ar
d

en
 t

o
 a

vo
id

 
ev

ap
o

ra
ti

o
n

. 

•
U

ti
li

ze
 a

 r
ai

n
 b

ar
re

l 
to

 u
se

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

h
o

t 
su

m
m

er
 

m
o

n
th

s.
 

•
C

h
o

o
se

 p
la

n
ts

 t
h

at
 a

re
 d

ro
u

gh
t 

re
si

st
an

t.
 

•
A

 l
aw

n
 o

n
ly

 n
ee

d
s 

ab
o

u
t 

an
 i

n
ch

 a
 w

ee
k

, 
o

ve
rw

at
er

in
g

 i
s 

ju
st

 a
s 

d
an

ge
ro

u
s 

as
 u

n
d

er
 w

at
er

in
g.

 

•
A

ls
o

, w
at

er
 y

o
u

r 
la

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

e 
m

o
rn

in
g

 o
r 

at
 n

ig
h

t 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
ev

ap
o

ra
ti

o
n

. 

•
U

se
 a

 g
re

as
e 

p
en

ci
l 

to
 m

ar
k

 t
h

e 
w

at
er

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

p
o

o
l 

at
 t

h
e 

sk
im

m
er

. 
C

h
ec

k
 t

h
e 

m
ar

k
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 l

at
er

 
to

 s
ee

 i
f 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
a 

le
ak

. 

•
G

o
 t

o
 h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.w
at

er
u

se
it

w
is

el
y.

co
m

 f
o

r 
o

ve
r 

o
n

e 
h

u
n

d
re

d
 m

o
re

 w
at

er
 s

av
in

g
 t

ip
s.

 

R
ai

n
 B

ar
re

ls
 

D
ri

p
 h

o
se

 i
rr

ig
at

io
n

 

http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/
http://www.wateruseitwisely.com/


 
 
 
 
 

BUILDING & ZONING ♦ ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ♦ ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS ♦ LAND USE ♦ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
STORMWATER PERMITTING ♦ TRAILS ♦ TRANSIT PLANNING ♦ WETLAND PROTECTION ♦ WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 

421 N. County Farm Road                 (630) 407-6700 Phone 
Wheaton, IL  60187                 (630) 407-6701 Fax 
 

DU PAGE COUNTY 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING 

Daniel J. Cronin, County Board Chairman 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
 
Date: September 30, 2014 
 
To: Stormwater Management Planning Committee 
 
From: Anthony Charlton, P.E., Director 
 
Re: Program Assessment Survey Results 
 
 
DuPage County Stormwater Management has been actively engaging communities in the Program 
Assessment process by meeting with mayors and managers from each district. The purpose of the meetings 
was to familiarize the representatives with each of Stormwater Management’s program areas, as well as 
provide an overview of an online survey that each municipality was asked to complete.  
 
To date, all of the district meetings have been completed and survey responses have been received from 30 
municipalities, including Addison, Aurora, Bartlett, Bensenville, Bloomingdale, Burr Ridge, Carol Stream, 
Clarendon Hills, Darien, Downers Grove, Elk Grove Village, Elmhurst, Glendale Heights, Hanover Park, 
Hinsdale, Itasca, Lisle, Lombard, Naperville, Oak Brook, Roselle, Villa Park, Warrenville, West Chicago, 
Westmont, Wheaton, Willowbrook, Winfield, Wood Dale and Woodridge. Eight municipalities did not 
respond to the survey, including Batavia, Bolingbrook, Glen Ellyn, Lemont, Oakbrook Terrace, 
Schaumburg, St. Charles and Wayne.  
 
Staff has analyzed the survey results, specifically the proposed services that each community ranked. The 
following information includes these results, as well as the summary of all survey responses. Attachments 
include: 
 

1. Services ranked by popularity among communities. Several factors were looked at, 
including population, watershed and waiver status to determine the most desirable services that 
communities expect from a Stormwater Management program. These are organized into three 
levels, based on the survey responses, with additional services following. The additional services 
may have been well received by some groups, but may not be mandatory services at this time. 

2. Survey results. The complete survey summary of each question can be found in this packet. Aside 
from the services, the other questions provide a narrative of how the communities perceive DuPage 
County Stormwater Management. In addition, a list of communities’ projects and other comments 
may be found here. 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
p

o
n

se
s 

 (
13

-1
4-

59
5 

: 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s)



 
 
 
 
 

BUILDING & ZONING ♦ ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ♦ ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS ♦ LAND USE ♦ STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
STORMWATER PERMITTING ♦ TRAILS ♦ TRANSIT PLANNING ♦ WETLAND PROTECTION ♦ WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 

421 N. County Farm Road                 (630) 407-6700 Phone 
Wheaton, IL  60187                 (630) 407-6701 Fax 
 

DU PAGE COUNTY 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING 

Daniel J. Cronin, County Board Chairman 

3. Services response chart. This chart ranks the responses for each potential service on a 1-5 scale 
and further breaks it down by population, watershed and waiver status. This is the basis for the 
survey rankings and following graphs. 

4. Service response graphs. These provide a graphical representation of the survey responses 
specific to potential services, including overall desirability and those that met the minimum 
threshold of interest. 

 
The next steps in the Program Assessment process are as follows: 
 

1. Stormwater Committee approval of survey responses. 
2. Countywide meeting with municipalities to discuss survey results. DuPage County will host this 

meeting. 
3. Inclusion of survey results and services into the draft Program Assessment. 
4. Bring draft Program Assessment back to Stormwater Committee in November for approval to go 

to public comment. 
5. Following that, open up the public comment period. 
6. Present final Program Assessment to Stormwater Committee in January. 
7. Begin financing discussion. 

10.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
p

o
n

se
s 

 (
13

-1
4-

59
5 

: 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s)



Program Assessment Survey Results – Services  

The three levels below are services that were desired by the majority of the communities surveyed. They 

are ranked by the level of importance to the communities, which is the score they received on the surveys. 

All achieving an average of 3 or above (broad support), all three levels are recommended for inclusion in a 

base Stormwater Management plan because of their overall desirability to municipalities. Below these three 

levels are additional services that were favored by some communities and categorical breakdowns 

(population, watershed and waiver status), but did not meet an overall average of 3 or above. These 

additional services may still be considered for inclusion in a base Stormwater Management program; 

however, additional outreach to communities may be necessary. 

Level 1 

 Re-establish a capital program for new projects and flood control facilities. 

 Offer a municipal flood control project grant program. 

 Enhance digital accessibility of floodplain maps. 

 Partner with communities in local watershed planning efforts. 

Level 2 

 Implement a regular map maintenance program. 

 Maintain and update hydrological, hydraulic and water quality models. 

 Assist communities with LOMR updates. 

 Update and maintain wetland maps. 

 Enhance the stream obstruction clearing program. 

 Complete all watershed plans to allow for more grant opportunities. 

 Create a streambank stabilization program. 

 Decrease permit review turn-around time. 

 Update older watershed plans to include water quality projects. 

 Enhance water quality education activities, both general and technical training. 

Level 3 

 Establish stable funding to allocate for the buyout program. 

 Create a completely regional program for NPDES requirements. 

 Create a GIS database for storm sewers across municipal boundaries. 

 Enhance the Water Quality Improvement Grant program. 

 Identify water quality projects in each major watershed. 

 Offer County assistance with community-based green infrastructure projects. 

 Reduce the floodplain mapping cycle to 10 years. 

 Develop an electronic permit submittal program. 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



Additional Services 

 Create a detention pond maintenance program. 

 Provide storm sewer televising. 

 Provide storm sewer cleaning/jetting. 

 Provide detention pond outlet cleaning. 

 Update permit tracking software. 

 Target watershed-specific buyouts for greater effectiveness. 

 Create a regular cycle for community audits. 

 Expand NPDES permit compliance services. 

 Create detention pond inspection program. 

 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

������

������ ��

����� �

����� �

����� �

����� �

	
���������������������

������������� ����������

��� ��

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� �����������
�����
����� �

*���%��� ��'�
�������$+,(

-����)�����%��
������$+(

�������.#�%�� /�������

���� ���!��

���"������� �

#
�����������$�

�
������

%�����&�!�������� �'(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

������

	+�- ������������#����0��&�'��
�����������

������������� ����������

! /������� )���

� 	���
'������� ���)�������*)����

� 	���
'�+!������ ��)������,*�����

- .�!!����
'�/!��0�!��1������ 2�-���������*�����

� 	���
'�3

0���!� 2��)��������*�-���

) .�!!����
'�4��� � 2��-������-*-)���

5 +!"�/�
$��.�!!��� 2���������-*�����

2 .�!!����
'�3�!!
�6�

" 2�����������*�)���

� .�!!����
'�.�! !�����" 2�����������*)����

, .�!!����
'�7��!� 2���������,*)2���

�� 	���
'�3����	�� ��
 2����������*�����

�� .�!!����
'��
������/�
$� 2����������*�2���

�� .�!!����
'�	��
!������� 2��2��������*�����

�- .�!!����
'�3��'��!0 2��2������,*)5���

�� .�!!����
'�3����
�� 2��5��������*�-���

�) 	���
'�8����$�! !� 2���������,*�����

�5 	���
'�3�����$�! !� 2����������*�����

�2 .�!!����
'�9�����$�! !� 2����������*�����

�� .�!!����
'�9���!��� 2���������2*�����

�, .�!!����
'�:
��!!� 2�,�������*�5���

�� .�!!����
'�9!

����0�!� 2�,������-*�-���

�� 	���
'�3����
� 2���������*�����

�� .�!!����
'�1���0�!� 2�2�������*-5���

�- .�!!����
'�%�"�9�

" 2�2��������*�2���

�� .�!!����
'�1��
$������" 2�-�������*)����

�) .�!!����
'�3

0��0�� 5�����������*�-���

�5 .�!!����
'��00��
� 5����������*�)���

�2 	���
'����
�� 5��-�������*�����

�� .�!!����
'�7
�6��0 5���������-*�����

�, .�!!����
'�9����:�0�� 5����������*�5���

-� .�!!����
'�	!����0
��1�!!� 5�5��������*�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-�����

	��- ������������#���0�� ���������&��'��
����������1��0���������&�%���%��

����������+�� ���������


! /������� )���

� 0�
�6� ;0������!��
$ ���)�������*)����

� "����<
���
�;�!�������
�� ��)������,*�����

- =
����>?�! �6������;/!��0�!�1�������
�� 2�-���������*�����

� <������;�

00�!�� 
� 2��)��������*�-���

) ���� �;���� �� 
� 2��-������-*-)���

5 ���;�!"��
$��
�� 2���������-*�����

2 ���!�";��!!
�6�

"��!��� 2�����������*�)���

� ��� 
�;$�!!���
'!��!��
�� 2���������,*)2���

, �'!�����;���� �� ��
�
�� 2����������*�����

�� "0!����;0
�������� 2����������*�2���

�� <6������; ��
!�������
�� 2��2��������*�����

�� �"������;$�!!���
'���'��!0� 
� 2��2������,*)5���

�- "�� 
!!;�����
���� !��
$ 2��5��������*�-���

�� "������0;�����$�! !��� !��� 2���������,*�����

�) < 
�"!�;������$�! !��� !��� 2����������*�����

�5 < ���  �;6�����$�!!��� !��� 2����������*�����

�2 ��!!��;$6���!����
�� 2���������2*�����

�� � 
����;�
��!!��� !��� 2�,�������*�5���

�, ��� ���;$�!�6!

����0�!���!��� 2�,������-*�-���

�� 0�
��;�����
���!��� 2���������*�����

�� 00�����;$�!!���
'����0�!��
�� 2�2�������*-5���

�� ���!!����;
�"@6�

"�
�� 2�2��������*�2���

�- <��!!��;���!�
�� 2�-�������*)����

�� "����;$�!��

0��0����!��� 5�����������*�-���

�) <6!
 ";�00��
�@�!�
�� 5����������*�)���

�5 "� ��
��;���
��@�!�
�� 5��-�������*�����

�2 �
!0����� ;$�!!���
'!
�6��0�
�� 5���������-*�����

�� ���;6���@��0����
$ 5����������*�5���

�, ��� "!���; !����0
���!!���� 5�5��������*�����

This Page Has  
Been Removed 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

������

,����� �)


����� �

����� �

	2�)�����'�0�03���&�'�������������
0�������#�������������4���&�0��#�

)�-����.���'����0������*�����0���
- �������.00�������������&&����������

�#������������0������� ��������������
����������#������4�'5

������������� ����������

��� ��

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� A��B�4��� ����������������0�������������� ����������� 2��-������-*-)���

����
,������$+6(

7�

������$2(

"�#���$� ����
���%�&'(

������$
(

�������.#�%�� /�������

A��

8


%�����&�!�������� �'(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

)�����

	6�8�����#���� ����������&'����#���& �
0��������9���4���0���� ������%���

������:�� ��'���;�%��9��#�%#������0������
����%��������;�%��&�����&�0������9

&����� ����� %� ����%����<���0������
��'�����������������%0� �������#�

������#���� ���5

����������+�� ���������


������

��

2
��,�

��


��+2�

)

��26�

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

����

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ����!
������!��	���"�3�������0��!�������!���0� 
��!���0� ��)������,*�����

� 4����������0�����������0������$��6���� 
��!���0B��
�
���"�
�!�0����
���
<� �����$��6����������0���� ��6���'�������.�!!���� 2�����������*-,���

- ������$������
�!���#!

0�	
���
!��!��� 
���0���0������C�������!�$��������$��6!��!
��������'!

0� 
���
!�0�$� �������!�$�����

���$���!�
���0B� 
����� ��0�
'��� 
��
!�0���0��������!���0����������
����� �
� ��������!!�
'���� ����"����������
�@$��6!�

'!

0� 
���
!����� �����

2�����������*�)���

� .��������'
�� 
��!������������������0��!����'
��3����9��� ���������:�$�����0�?�����	���"���0��!!�
'��������6�������� 2����������*�-���

=��'�<��#�
�������$

(

<��#�
2
��,��$
+(

7����� �

��+2��$6(

>��
��26��$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

5�����

	��)�-����.���'�%������ '�� '�&����
& ��0�����������;�%����#���#��������

�#����&&�%� �'������%������������&�������#��
%���������3�%� ��&���;�%����<�

�0���������'�������������������;�%�
%�����%�������  �4�����& ����5

����������+,� ���������+

���+��

��

���+��

��


��,��

)

��6��

�

�����

�

�

��

�

���5

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 	�������������'��0����0
����
���� !�0��!
 �!�D�0�'��0���B��
���������
����$���� ��)������,*�����

� �
�����6����
'�
���"�
�!�0��B������������
���
�
��0���
<� �����0��� 
���0�����
��6�����	
������� ���
�!0��!!�$�����'!

0������

3�!!
�6�

"�

2�����������*-,���

- ��������������������'!

0� 
���
!�'����������7��!���������!�$���'
����� ������.�! !��������!���!��
���������
����������0��  ���B���

0
��
����$�������
<� ����
�6��'��0�0����7��!��

2�����������*�)���

� ���
 ����0������3����9��� ���������:�$�����0�?�����	���"���0��!!�
'��������6�������� 2����������*�-���

) :���
��!���
<� �����
�!0����"��������������!
 �!�&���� ���!��
������(���
<� �����
�!0��
��6��'��0�0�6�����	
���� 2��2��������*�����

5 �������������!���
'�3�������0����0 2��2��������*�����

2 ��������������0��
�0�����6����'��0����
�
���
����!�6���0���
�� 
����6���
�� 5�����������*-2���

=��'�<��#�
���+���$

(

<��#�
���+���$

(

7����� �

��,���$6(

>��
��6���$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

2�����

	��)�-����.���'�#���0����#���++�
� ���3 �9�& �?������������������#�

4 �����'�������'�3�'��� �����<�
�0���������'�����������������3�'���

���& �?��������������5

����������+,� ���������+

�+�
2�

,

+
�2��

5

+
�2��

5

��6��

�

+
�2��

5

�

��

�

��5�

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� +!������������
��
����
�������! ���B�6����
�!0�! �"���
���$���
����
�����00�0� ��)������,*�����

� �
�����6����
'�
���"�
�!�0��B������������
���
���������������.�!!�������������
������6�
���! ���� 2�����������*-,���

- ������������.�! !���E���������'!

0���������
���������� 2�����������*�)���

� �������������
��� 
����''� ��$���
!���
����0����������!��!����������!!�'!

0�0��������
��������
�������0������'
�����
�!0�6�

���"�0��������$�����������!�$�!��#!

0� 
���
!���
<� ���0
��
��� ���$�������!�$�!�
'���
�� ��
����0����� 
���0���6!��
��

�C�����$���#!

0��

'����&�!�$�����(�������$���6����� ��$�!�����
���0�����������
����'��0���B��������� �B��!������B��0� ���
�


��0��������
�������
'�	
����#!

0��

'������
�������
�!0�6��0�$�!
��0���0����!������0�

2��2��������*�����

) 	
� �������'
���F����6!������
'�0
!!��� 2��2��������*�����

5 ������� 
��
�����! ����� 2�,�������*--���

2 4� !�0������
���������
���������'�0���!�'!

0�!��� 5�5��������*�)���

=��'�<��#�
�+�
2��$�(

<��#�
+
�2���$�(

7����� �
+
�2���$�(

>��
��6���$
(

=��'�>��
+
�2���$�(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

������

	,�)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%� ���@����������#�

%�������������#���0�����0���������0
��&&���0�����������%�����#������������

�0����������4��������� �����3� ���- ����
�����#�������������'�������������
�� ��3�������%#��@�������&&������

������������� ����������

�����

�

+�����

5


�����

)

+�����

�

������

��

�����

�

�

-�

�

-���

�����

�


�����

)

������

,

������

,

+�����

2

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�5�

�����

�


�����

-

+�����

5

������

��

������

��

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�,-

+��6��

�


�����

�


�����

�


��+2�

)

+��6��

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

-��-

+�����

�


�����

)


�����

)


�����

)

+�����

2

�����

�

�

-�

�

��,-

�����

�

�����

�

+�����

5

+�����

�

2�����

��

�����

�

�

-�

�

���-

�����

�


�����

)

+�����

5

������

��

������

,

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�22

.0� �����  

������#���� ���

A������ ���

������#���� ���

/�?����3 ��#��

%����� �������

B���3 ��#

���3 ��&�������

������

������#��?�����

"&&����

0���%��� �& ���

-����������#

%00�����������

� � � - � )

� 7�

C���������

7����� �0��#��

C���������

C��������� =��'

C���������

7D� ��� �4 �����

/�����

	
��!�����!!���������0��!�����
��!!
��'
���
��������


��
����������

G�0����
!0�����������0��!�����
��� !�0��������F��!�����
<� ���

:�@����6!������ �����!���
�����'
��������
<� �����0�'!

0� 
���
!

'� �! ������

+���6!�������6!��'��0�����
��!!
 ����'
������6�
�����
�����

���������������0@��� �'� �6�
����'
�����������''� ��$������

%''��������� ���!�'!

0� 
���
!���
<� ����������
�����

������������� 
�������������!
 �!���������0��!��������''
����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

,�����

	��8#������'�������������1����&�������&
�������� ���;�%���#����#� ��3��&�����

������ '�3'��#��.���'5

����������+�� ����������

! /������� )���

� ������
��!���
<� ����
�!0��� 
��
����������������������������!�������6��������
���������� 
��
�����6
��0��� ���)�������*)����

� ����
<� �������6���'�����
��������
������� ���!�� ��2��������*)����

- :���
��!���
<� �����
�!0�6���'�����!���!�� 
���������� ��)������,*�����

� ����
<� �������6���'����
� 
�������
�
'�����
�����������������!
 ���0������������'!

0�!����
'�����<
��������� 2��)��������*�5���

) ��
<� ��������6���'�����!���!��<����0� ��
��B��� !�0������
��������0�0
�������� 2��-������-*-2���

5 ����
<� ���������!!�6���'�����!���!������ ���!�����������������	
�����&+C��9�����3

0�������
0�'� ���
����
<� �( 2���������-*--���

2 ����
<� �������6���'������'!

0@��
��������������  ��������
''�'�
����!���!��<����0� ��
��B�
������
<� ���������������
��!�6���'���

'�
����0� �0�'!

0���B��� ������������!���������
������
��!����!
����� �������

2�����������*-,���

� 9���'�����
��������
�����C����6
0 2�����������*)5���

, %������������0��� ������ ��
��6���'����
���!���!������ ���!��������0���!���!����
�����
������ 2����������*�-���

�� �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�)���

�� �����
<� ������� ���6����
����
��''� ��$�!���0��''� ����!��!!�$�������
������������
''���
6!����&'!

0�0������B��
�!���
��
�B

�� �(����������6���� ����0���������6����
''�'�
��
�����<����0� ��
���
��������������
6!�������
�����<����0� ��
�����0�����
������
<� �

����������������!��
'���!���
����F���������

2��2��������*�����

�� ���� ���!�����������6���'�����
�!0���������� 
���� 2��2��������*�����

�- ��
<� ����������$����!���������6������������0��''� �������0�'!

0�!��������
<� ���������''� ����!���!��<����0� ��
��� 2��5��������*�-���

�� �����
<� ��!
 ���0��!
�����!��	���"B�����+����
������3����9��� ��
'������������:�$���
���!
���
���
'��������6���������������

!
 ���0������!���!������ ���!������

2���������,*�����

�) ������
��!���
<� �����
��������6���'����
������ ����
��������
������� ���!��� 2����������*�����

�5 ����
<� ������������ �������
������������ ���!�������������
��������� 
���
!�0����
���
�����������������0�'�
����������0�����������

��!���!������ ���!���������������
�!0�6����$�������������
�����
���
���
������0
������������0�
'�������������0����������"��
�

!������F����������
'�������'�
�������������������� ���!�����

2����������*�2���

�2 %��������6���'�����
��������
������� ���!��� 2�,�������*--���

�� .�!!����0
����
����$�����H
�����D���
��!�0�'�����
�H 2�,������-*�2���

�, ��D��
'�0�����������������������������F����!� 2���������*�5���

�� ��
<� ���������������0��������$
!$�����
�
���
����
$��������!�6
0����&H��$
!$��H� ���6��0�'���0���������������'!

0������
6!���

�����!!������������������������
�� ��
'�����'!

0��������(

2�2�������*�����

�� �������������
����������� ! � �B������!���0���
<� ���
�!0�F��!�'� 2�2��������*)����

�� ������
��!���
<� ���00�������0��������'!

0�����������$
!$�����!���!�� 
���������B������'� ����!�$�!��
'�0��������0���$
!$��

'��0��'�
���!!���������� ����������6���'����������� ����

5�����������*-2���

�- ��
<� ��6���'��������!���!��<����0� ��
���
����$�����������
��0
������������� ��� 5����������*�2���

�� ����
<� �������!
���������9#+���������������0�#!

0��B����������������������5���� �������6����� 5��-�������*�����

�) :���
��!���
<� �����
�!0��
��6����F����0��
�6���'�����!���!��<����0� ��
����������
��!���
<� ����
�!0��� !�0����
<� �����������

����!��<����0� ��
��

5���������-*�)���

�5 �����'� ���� �����!���
<� �������� ���6���C�� ��0��
��!����������������$��!
����������!���!�� 
���������� 5����������*)����

�2 �����
<� �������������
!���
����0�����
������
'�������
6!����������0�''������<����0� ��
�� 5�5��������*�)���

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	
��8#������'�������������1����&������
&��� %� ���;�%���#����#� ��:�� �&'�&���

%��?�#����&�0�)�-����.���'5

����������+,� ���������+

! /������� )���

� 8����6
��

0�0����������
<� ����������!������ ���)�������*)����

� ����
<� �����������������
������� ���!���6���6���'����
���
���
���
�������� ���!����� ��2��������*)����

- ����
<� ��6���'������������!�� 
�������'
�������������'!

0����'!

0�0������ ��)������,*�����

� ����
<� ���������6���'����
� 
�������
�
'�����
�������� 2��)��������*�5���

) ��
<� ���������������!�6���'���
���<����0� ��
�B�6�����$���� �! !���6���'�����
�
�����<����0� ��
�� 2��-������-*-2���

5 7
 �!���
<� ��������
�!0���
$�0��	
�����0��6���'������ ����� �!$�������!� ����������� 
�!0���0� ��'!

0������0���
$�0�����''� 

6���'����

2���������-*--���

2 ����
<� ������0�����!!�$�������'!

0������� ������ ����
��������
���&�(���
����B���0��
�!0��!��������'!

0����
'����� ������&�
�

������ ��'!

0���(�

2�����������*-,���

� �
����$��6���'��� 
�������
�
���!!�$�����'!

0�����
���6!� !�
���0�'� �! ����� 2�����������*)5���

, ������6��"����6�! �D���
�B���
�������������
$���������0�0������
��6����� 
����� ��
� 2�����������*�)���

�� %������������0��� ������ ��
��6���'����
�!�������!������ ���!���
����
�����
����� 2����������*�-���

�� �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�)���

�� %�!�����
��!���
<� �����
�!0�F��!�'�'
���������	
����'��0���� 2��2��������*�����

�- ��
<� ��������������'!

0�!��� 2��2��������*�����

�� ��
<� ���������00�����7
����������
��!���������������� ����
���
���
'����6���������B������0!����
'���������������������
��!���
�

�
�B������ �����'!

0����
'�6��!0�������0������������������
<� �������������!!��
��!
 ���0��!
��������0�'!

0�!����B�6��� ��

�''� ������0�����<�������0����� �!!�

2��5��������*�-���

�) �������
��!���
<� � 2���������,*�����

�5 ��!
 �!���
<� �����
��������6���'����
������ ����
��������
�����
�����
��������
������� ���!��� 2����������*�����

�2 ����
<� ���������!��$���!
 �!�'!

0����������� 
��!���0� 
������0���������������� ���!���! ����� 2����������*�2���

�� %����������
$�0���
�!���!
 �!�6���'���&$�������
��!�6���'��(� 2�,�������*--���

�, .�!!����0
����
����$�����H
�����D���
��!�0�'�����
�H 2�,������-*�2���

�� ����
��!����� 
�����*��������6��"����6�! �D���
�� �����!�0��0���� 2���������*�5���

�� ��'!

0�����������������
����
$��������!�6
0E��6
��0��B������
!���
���
���� ���C ��0�������
���!!��  ����0� 
���
'���
��

�����������������'!

0� 
���
!�

2�2�������*�����

�� �����
<� ���''� �����������������
�����������0
�����������������������6
����� 
���������� 2�2��������*)����

�- ����!
 �!����� ���
�!0�0� �0��
������
0���0�'��0���
��00�����!
 �!���
<� ����	
����'��0���� 
�!0�6���!!
 ���0��
�E������E

6���0�
����
�
���
����� 
����6���
����
����

!���!�������$�!B���� 
�!0�6����!
����

!�

5�����������*-2���

�� 8����6
��

0���������� �����0�������� 5����������*�2���

�) ����
<� ����$
!$����!���������5���� ����6��� �
�������!���!��<����0� ��
��� 5��-�������*�����

�5 ��
<� ������������ �������!!���
������ �����B��
���6!��0�'���0����)�
��'�������
�������� 5���������-*�)���

�2 7
 �!�'!

0� 
���
!���
<� ���
��8��+�� 
��!��� ����� ���C��6������
����$�� 
��@6���'���'
���
��������
��� 
������� 5����������*)����

�� ����
�@����
��!���6!� ���
<� ��������00���������
������������������! �D����	
������ 
���D�0�9������������������ �� ��� 5�5��������*�)���

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	

�E�������)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�������0���9

� �����������#��������#���0�����0���
�����01��4���  ����4�%������#������%���
������#���� ������9�& �?�����������'
3�'�������������� ���;�%������������

%�����%����

������������� ����������

�����

�

+�����

�

2�����

�-

+�����

5

�����

�

�

-�

�

���2

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ����	
����
$���!!�������'���!� 
���������$����
���������������������
�����&��
����(��1
��$��B����$� ������������!� "������

����������
'�'��0������ !�0��#!

0�	
���
!���
<� ��B�3�����I��!���4���
$��������
�������0�#!

0��!�������� �����9�
������

���$� ���������
�!0�6���00�0������#!

0��

'������
�����

2��2��������*�����

� 9�
�����
�������0��F����6!� 2��2��������*�����

<��# '
.0���#����4�

������$+(

.0���#����4��
+������$,(

��&&�%�����
2������$
�(

7������������� 
���4�%��

+������$�(

>�%�����B������� 
���4�%��

������$
(

� <��# '�.0���#����4 � .0���#����4 � ��&&�%���� 7������������� ����4 �%�� >�%�����B������� ����4 �%�� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	
+�- �������% ������'��������� ����4�%��
����#��%�0�����'���������������� �

 ������������% ��������)�-����.���'
���0������*�����0���1��������#��

0�����0���������0�

����������
�� ���������
�

! /������� )���

� 	���"�6�0���������� ����0�6��"����6�! �D���
� ���)�������*)����

� 8
�� ��)������,*�����

- ��
$�0������ ���!������������00���
��!�'��0����'
��6�
������0� �����!���
<� ����������0� ��'!

0��� 2��)��������*�5���

� &�
��( 2�����������*-,���

) 	
!!� ��$������� �����
�����	:� 2�����������*)5���

5 #!

0���
�����
�����6�
�����0���������0����0���B��� !�0������0���0�'!

0�!�����
0�!� 2�����������*�)���

2 :���
��!�
��!
 �!���
<� ������
 ����0������?�����	���"���0�����������0����6���������������	���
'�3����	�� ��
 2����������*�-���

� �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�)���

, ����� 
�������������6
$�� 2��2��������*�����

�� 4� ���������������
�����������0�6��"� !���@��� 2��2��������*�����

�� �(�%���.�! !�����
�!0�!�"���
������� 
��@������'
��!
��0�������
��!������'!

0������
<� ��J��� !�0������������
'������������B

���!�������0�����������0����������������������0����������
��
'�9����#!

0�+!�$���
���'
�������������B�'���!�������������
'

��
���������������������
<� ��B���0� 
����� ��
��
'���
���������������������
<� ���

2��5��������*�-���

�� 8
�
����� 2���������,*�����

�- �� ���
�����������������6����0��
��������6��"���������� � 2����������*�2���

�� 8
��00���
��!�
������������
���
��!���0��6
$�� 2�,������-*�2���

�) ����
���
'�!
 �!�'!

0����������������������
!���
���C ��0������!
 �!����� ���!��E���6�! ����
�'��0� 2�2�������*�����

�5 8�� 5�����������*-2���

�2 	���"�����
����
����0���
��
�� 
���
!� 5����������*�2���

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�-�����

	
��.������ '9�+�&��#����0�����������#��
)�-����.���'1��7-)B�����0������

������ ��&&�����<�4������������� '������� 
�����0�%� ����04����3������&�0
0���%��� �������<����������������'��
��������������#�4����)�-����.���'

����0���������3� ��'�&��7-)B�����0��
%0� ���%�5

������������� ����������

+�����

5

+�����

�

������

��


�����

-

�����

�

�

-�

�

-��-

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ���� �������!�$�!�
'�	
������������ ������0�F����� ��)������,*�����

� �
���
'�������� ��$������������ ! ! ����0��
�6���  
��!����0�6����� ���!��������0��
���������� ��������������������� 2��2��������*�����

- 9�������������!���0�����B�6��� !
�����
�������! 2���������,*�����

� ����
�����
�!0�6��0����0����
�� 
����� ����0�'
���������������
� 5�����������*�����

) ���
����
�!0���� ! �D������?����	
������
���� 5��-�������*�����

5 �
���
�!0���������
!$������'� ��������������� ���!��������� ! ! �����
�����
��
'��������K 5�5��������*)����

=��'�<��#�
+������$�(

<��#�
+������$,(7����� �

�������$

(

>��

������$�(

=��'�>��
������$+(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	
2�)�-����.���'1��8�����	�� ��'
C0��4�0����F�����-����0����%������ '
&���������G���9���������  '����#�&������

��:���������%#����G
���0�  ������&��%� �'���
+�
2��<���0���������'����������������

������������#��������05

����������+�� ���������


�����

�

22�,��

�-

+�����

5

+��6��

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

-�-�

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� +!������E������������������������!
 �!�D�0�'!

0������������
�� ��)������,*�����

� 3������������
�� ��
'�����'��0���K 2�����������*�2���

- �!��
��������������$������
�������!����������3I4/�����0���
�6��6�!�� �0���������
��������0��
'�������
����� 2��2��������*�����

� ��
�!0�6���� 
� �!�0�����������!����'
��L���!
 �!�������� 5�����������*�����

) ���
���'��0�����
�!0�6�����
��������?����	
������
���� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
������$+(

<��#�
22�,���$
�(

7����� �
+������$�(

>��
+��6���$,(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�)�����

	
6�"&��#��������#���������������)�-���
.���'9��#��������:�� ��'���;�%��

������&�������� �0������������03���
���3� �����������������������������

��;�%����8��#�����;�%���3�����������&���
�������4���� ���9���������&&�%� ���������

&����������:�� ��'���;�%����#���#��������
<���0���������'����������������

�����%��4� '��������������:�� ��'���;�%��
���@�������������#���� ���5

������������� ����������

�����

�

6�����

�5

������

��

�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�5-

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 1
��������
<� ����0����'��0�'
��������'��0���K ��)������,*�����

� ��������
<� ������� �� ��!��
�������  ����
'��%�3E����
���
�
����������! ���������������������4+����1
��$��B���
<� ��������6�

 ���'�!!�� ������D�0�'
���������6�! ����
������	!����3������ ��&	3�(��
�!��

2��2��������*�����

- 9�������������!���0�����B�6��� !
�����
�������! 2���������,*�����

� �!���������L�5�@�����
��!���
<� ��������'��0�����
��:�	3��������'����0� 5�����������*�����

) 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
������$+(

<��#�
6������$
�(

7����� �
�������$

(

>��
������$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�5�����

	
��/����� �������:�� ��'���;�%�����
)�-����.���'9���%#�����#��.#��%#�  
8���)�0�/�04� 9�#�4��3����4��'

��%%���&� ����3�������� %� ��������'����
&��0����0�����<��4��9��#������;�%��

����%������ '�� '������?&�������<�
�0���������'�������������������;�%�

%�����%�������0��4���#��:�� ��'�&
)�-����.���'1�������0�9���4���������#��

������ ������5

����������+�� ���������


�����

�

2
��,�

��

������

��

�����

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

-�-�

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 1
���
�!0���
<� �� 
����� ��
��6���0����'��0K ��)������,*�����

� ����� 
����������)��6
$�� 2��2��������*�����

- 9�������������!���0�!
�B�6��� !
����
�!
� 2���������,*�����

� 	

�0��������
<� ������
�����:�	3 5�����������*�����

=��'�<��#�
������$+(

<��#�
2
��,��$
+(

7����� �
�������$

(

>��
������$+(

=��'�>��
������$+(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�2�����

	
��)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%� ���@����������#�

%�������������:�� ��'������0���&&��
0�����������%����%00����������0�

��������4��������� �����3� ���- ���������
#�������������'���������������� ��3�

�����%#��@�������&&������

������������� ����������


�����

)

+�����

5

�����

�

������

,

+�����

2

�����

�

�

-�

�

-���

+�����

5


�����

-


�����

-

������

,

+�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�-�

�����

�

�
����

,


��+2�

)

+�����

5

+�����

5

��26�

�

�

�,

�

-���


�����

-

+�����

2


�����

�

+�����

2

+�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�-�

�����

�

+�����

5

+�����

�

������

,


�����

)

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�-�

�����

�

+�����

�


�����

)

������

,

+�����

5

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�-�

.�������

%0� ��� '���

.��������FC�

����3����&����

B�#��%���#�

8�����	�� �����

C�����&'������

:�� ��'���

B�#��%�������

:�� ��'���

"&&���.���'

��������%������

� � � - � )

� 7�

C���������

7����� �0��#��

C���������

C��������� =��'

C���������

7D� ��� �4 �����

/�����

	�������� 
��!���!�����
��!���
�����'
��8��+����F����������

	��������/4��0���6����'
����
����������� �
������� ���!�6
��0������

+���� ������3�����I��!���4���
$������/�������
����

40����'�������F��!�����
<� �������� ����<
����������0�

+���� ��������F��!����0� ���
��� ��$�����B�6
���������!���0

�� ��� �!����������

%''���	
������������ ������� 
������@6���0���������'������ ����

��
<� ���

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	
,�E�������)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�������0���9

� �����������#��������:�� ��'������01�
4���  ����4�%������#������%����7-)B�
���0���%0� ���%�9��#��8�����	�� ��'

C0��4�0����F�����-����0����������� 
������:�� ��'���;�%������������

%�����%����

����������+�� ���������


�����

�


��+2�

)

6
��+�

�)


��+2�

)

�����

�

�

�,

�

-���

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ������������������!

"�����
��00�������F��!�������!������00���
��!����$� �����!!�6�����0�0��
�������� 
���������� 2�����������*�-���

� 8��+�����$� �������$��� 
���������$����0� 
��!����B�6�����!!����0��
�6���C���0�0���0������ �0��
�������� 
��!��� ������

�������0����������3I4/��!� "����������!�'��0���������	
����0
���M����$��������
��!��!�������!� ��'
��������F��!�����
<� ��

'
��0��������0� 
����� ��
�B�6���
���������0�0�

2��2��������*�����

- 8�B��
��'���!�����������
����B���� ��������! �D������?�����3��
�0���� � 5��-�������*�����

<��# '
.0���#����4�

������$+(

.0���#����4��

��+2��$6(

��&&�%�����
6
��+��$
6(

7������������� 
���4�%��


��+2��$6(

>�%�����B������� 
���4�%��

������$+(

� <��# '�.0���#����4 � .0���#����4 � ��&&�%���� 7������������� ����4 �%�� >�%�����B������� ����4 �%�� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�,�����

	
��- �������% ������'��������� ����4�%��
����#��%�0�����'���������������� �

 ������������% ��������)�-����.���'
���0������*�����0���1��������:�� ��'

�����0�

����������

� ���������
�

! /������� )���

� ��������� ���� �!�
���'�!!����� �������
����$����6
��!���� "���������� ���)�������*)-���

� 	
��������0� ���
����0���������� ��)������,*�����

- �
�����������$����"����
����
$��0�6������0�'�!!���������'�
����!�� ���" 2��)��������*�2���

� &�
��( 2�����������*�2���

) +C���0�0�4��+���
����B���!

"�����C�������0������
��6��������0�!
��@�������������� �B����� ��!!���0���������
$�!���
���6!�

 
����� ��
��
'���0� ����'� �! ���'
����0���������
$�!����0
������?����	
����3��

2�����������*�-���

5 �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�5���

2 ����� 
�������������6
$�� 2��2��������*�����

� �����������	
�����0����
���������/4��!����������
�!0��� !�0�����������������
������� �����:4����0�48.��!�$���
��B���
��

���������B���0�!
 ���
��'
����<
����
�������������0�����������0���������
����
���B�����
�!0��$���6��6�������
���$������

��'
�����
��'
���!!���
��������������� 
�������

2��5��������*)����

, ��
�����������������B������ �0���������'������ �������������$�� 2�,�������*-����

�� 	
�����0��I������!��
���
�����N�%��'�!!�4���� ��
����������'��47:���������JJ�+C���0�������6��"����6�! �D���
��N�������

��������� ����
�����

2�,������-*-����

�� 8� 5�����������*�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	+��)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1��& �� ����0������������0

������&��������%����������#��& �� ���9���
��  ��������%�������#���0�'�#�4��%0����

&��#��& �� ����3�%�����&�& �
0�����������;�%����<��4��9�%������ '9

�#�����:������+��'����%'% ���<���0������
��'������������������@����������#�

& �� ����0�������%'% �5

������������� ����������

+�����

�

������

��

+�����

5


�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�2�

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ��!��	���"�����6���������0���$���!�������
$�������������������� ��)������,*�2���

� %�������� 
� ��������6���������  ���� �
'�������
����B��
���� ������!�����'��F��� � 2�����������*),���

- 7��!�E�����!!������6����������$����$���6���������0��0��%����������������� ! ! ����������
������!!� 
��!���0�6�1G��'
������'�����#4:�� 2�����������*�5���

� �������!������"����

�!
���'
����
�����
�������
����!�D������6���'����
'�'!

0� 
���
!���
<� ���
���
�6� 
���������
'��������0��



6�����'!

0�������� ��
����"����
�� ��
����������������������!��
'� ��������'!

0��!�����0����
�������
����$����B�6�����

�
0�!����
�����$�����

2��2��������*�����

=��'�<��#�
+������$,(

<��#�
�������$

(

7����� �
+������$�(

>��

������$2(

=��'�>��
������$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	+
�H �� ����0������������%#�������#��
����0�������&������ ���'�&��%����9

��% ������& ���������%�����������<�
�0���������'����������������

%0� ������& �� ����0����&����%#
������#��5

������������� ����������

������

,

6�����

�)

�����

�


�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�,2

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ��!��	���"���������0��!���N�'!

0�!�����������$��6���� 
��!���0� ��)������,*�2���

� ��������$������
�������
���"���������
�����
������������������������������"B�6���������������������
����''
���������0�0�
�����

'�
�����0�
'�������
 ����������0� ���
����0� 
���������$
!$�������
���0� ������ 
�'���
����0���
6!����
'����������

2��2��������*�����

=��'�<��#�
�������$�(

<��#�
6������$
6(

7����� �
������$+(

>��

������$2(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	++�)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0�������%������ '����3 ����������
& �� ����0�������%%����&���������0
�4���������& ��0�����������;�%����<�

�0���������'����������������
0�������������������������#��& �� ���

0���5

������������� ����������

+�����

�

2�����

��

+�����

5

�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�,-

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� G�0����'
��'!

0���������
����
<� ���
�!B��
��������
����$����� ��)������,*�2���

� �����
���������!��������$���������
'�'!

0��!��������������0��������� ����������
����
�����
�����B������!!����0��
���!���C�!���

�
�������� ���������$��
  ����0���0���������������0�0�

2��2��������*�����

=��'�<��#�
+������$,(

<��#�
2������$
2(

7����� �
+������$�(

>��
������$+(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�-�����

	+��)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%� ���@����������#�

%�������& �� ����0������������0��
&&���0�����������%����%00��������

�0����������4��������� �����3� ���- ����
�����#�������������'�������������
�� ��3�������%#��@�������&&������

������������� ����������


�����

)


�����

)


�����

�

+�����

�

+�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�-�

�����

�


�����

�


�����

)

������

��

������

,

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�22


�����

-


�����

�


�����

)

������

��

+�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�)-


�����

-


�����

�

�����

�

������

��

������

��

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�2�

�����

�

�����

�


�����

�

������

��

6�����

�)

�����

�

�

-�

�

��-�

/���%���#�

& �� ������

C0� �0�����

���� ���0�����

*�����������

���������

������

%00����������

B�#��%�

������ ���

� � � - � )

� 7�

C���������

7����� �0��#��

C���������

C��������� =��'

C���������

7D� ��� �4 �����

/�����

:�0� ������'!

0�!������������  !���
���������

4��!������������!���������������� ����
�����

�����������0���0�����0�
!
�� �!B��0���!� ���0�������F��!��

�
0�!��

������� 
���������������7%�:���0�����

+���� ��0�����!��  ����6�! ���
'�'!

0�!���������

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	+2�E�������)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�������0���9
� �����������#��& �� ����0������

�����01��4���  ����4�%���

������������� ����������

�����

�

������

��

+�����

�

������

��

�����

�

�

-�

�

-���

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 	!������������B�&���
!���
�(�'
��'!

0��!������
�������B���0��00�����00������ ���)�������*)����

� �  ��� �
'�������������
��������������
���� 2�����������*),���

- 7%�:��������� ����0���0���������!!������6��������'!

0�!����������� 2�����������*�5���

� ����	
���E��
$���!!�#!

0��!��������������
�������� 
���������$��'
�������
�������B�6������!� "���������
���������
��

 
����� ���
���������0��0� ���
��
'�����0��������
���
��������������������������''
������0���
���"���!� �������� �����!�

�!!�$������
���
'�������� 
����� ���
����0�6� "!�����������!!��
���!!����������!�
B����� ���!��������0�����	
������
�!0

���
!$��������0�''���� ��������0������������������
 ����6�'
�����"����
����
�����������������
<� ��
������� ����������
�����

�����!��������
�!�����
� ����������
��6!����0����!���� �'!

0��!����������������
$�0��$���!���'
�����
���
���!����
�� ����
����


�����B��
$��������!����� ������0�
������'�
��'!

0�0�������������
0�!������0���������0��
�6���  ��������0����������

����E��������0��
���"��
���������'
���������
�����0���"�������� ������ 
��� ��
����3����
�!0��
�"�
����"��������#!

0��!���

����������
������� 
!!�6
����$���''
���6��������������� ���!��������0�	
����

2��2��������*�����

.0���#����4��
�������$
�(

��&&�%�����
+������$,(

7������������� 
���4�%��

�������$

(

>�%�����B������� 
���4�%��

������$
(

� <��# '�.0���#����4 � .0���#����4 � ��&&�%���� 7������������� ����4 �%�� >�%�����B������� ����4 �%�� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�)�����

	+6�- �������% ������'��������� ����4�%��
����#��%�0�����'���������������� �

 ������������% ��������)�-����.���'
���0������*�����0���1��& �� ���

0������������0�

����������
+� ���������
,

! /������� )���

� ����	
�������0���
�����
$��������
 ����'
���''� �����������$���
��� ��)������,*�2���

� ��0� ������'!

0�!������������  !���
��������B����!������������!���������������� ����
����B������������0���0���

'!

0�!�����
0�!�B�������� 
���������������7%�:���0����B���0������ ��0�����!��  ����6�! ���
'�'!

0�!��������

2��)��������*�,���

- #���������� �������'!

0�!��������������
<� � 2��-������-*-����

� &�
��( 2�����������*),���

) 7%�:��������� ����0���0���������!!������6��������'!

0�!����������� 2�����������*�5���

5 +$�!�������0���0��������� ��'!

0�!������������'
��?�����	���"���0��!!�
'�����������0����6���������������	���
'�3����	�� ��
� 2����������*�����

2 �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�2���

� ���@���������0� ���
����0���'
����'
������ ���!��������0�����	
�����
� 
����
��������������
��������
 ������0��
�!� 2��2��������*�����

, �(���������
'�!
��0�������
��!���������������� ����
���
���
'����6����������������C������ ��'!

0����'
��6��!0�������0���������

�����������
��
'�9����#!

0��!�$���
��������������������(��������	
����/4����������
'���<
����
�������������0�'
���0�
!
�� 

��0��0���!� ��
0�!����
'�0�����������0��������������
�!0��� !�0����
������� �������0���
�����������'
�����
��������
�!0

�� !�0���������!����B���D�B�!
 ���
�B���0�:4��48.��!�$���
����-(�+C�����
��
'�����	
����/4��������������
�� �������/4�

	
��
������������������ ������
'�����
��������G��! ���'����	
����/4�����''� 
�!0� 
����
����� ���!����������
���0�0� ���0�/4�

���''���0��������"��
���0�������������$�
��������'
���������! � �B������!!���B���0����
�����/4��!������'
�����
��

2��5�������*�����

�� ����	�����!!�����
������� 
������"����
$�������7%�:���
 �������!
������������$������0�  !�������������
�����!
�������������

���������#+���

2���������,*�5���

�� 8
�
�����������!���0�
��!���0��6
$�� 2�,������-*-����

�� 8� 5�����������*�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�5�����

	+��)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1������ ���'����4�%��

�����0�%������ '�#�����+����2����'
���0�����4������%����3����������0��

%0� �@��'��<���0���������'��
��������������������%����������������

��0��&�����0���5

����������+�� ���������


�
����

,

+2�
2�

2


��+2�

)


��+2�

)


���2�

-

�

�,

�

-���

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 4��� ��0�$�!
�������0�����.�!!����'��0��������@���0�����������$����'����������B����� ��!!���� ���� ����$������F��������!���!�

��$�����

2��-������-*�����

� 3�!!
�6�

"������'�!!@���$��� 
������� 2�����������*�-���

- 3��������'�!!����$��� 
��������
��
���
'���������!��
�����$� ���F�����
���0
��
�����!��
���������.�!!���E������� �'
����
�������

��6�����!���$�����������
�"����0����1
��$��B��
�������������"�����$���!�0���6�'
������������ �!!������0���3����0������0��������

0����
�$���������
�"!
�0�B�6����
�!0�!�"���
�������
��� �!!���������0�6�������C��6��������0��

2��2��������*�����

� 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
�
�����$�(

<��#�
+2�
2��$�(

7����� �

��+2��$6(

>��

��+2��$6(

=��'�>��

���2��$�(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�2�����

	+��A������������0������%������&�������
��4����&����%�������&��%���� ��'�&��3�#
���&&�������� �%�����#���3����%����� �����

��%����'������<���0���������'��
������������������������#�����0��

�&�����5

����������+�� ���������



���2�

-

+2�
2�

2

2
��,�

��


���2�

-


�����

�

�

�,

�

-��2

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ����� �����!��!
 �������������������������������0��
��'�!!���
��
� 
��� �B�6����
������
����������
���$���  �����
����''� 2��2��������*�����

� �� ��
!
�� ���
���00��������� ����!�
����
 ������
�� 
������ 2���������,*�����

- 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�

���2��$�(

<��#�
+2�
2��$�(

7����� �
2
��,��$
+(

>��

���2��$�(

=��'�>��

������$2(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�������

	+,�)�-����.���'1����� ���
�����0��������%������ '������
����
2

�����'����%0� �����<���0��������
'���������������������%�����#���0���

&���0��&����� ���������0�������5

����������+�� ���������


��26�

�

+�����

5

2
��,�

��

+2�
2�

2


���2�

-

�

�,

�

���-

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ����.�!!���E������� �'
��0������������'������!��0��C�����������
�"����0�����0��
�$���'������!��0�0�!������
����E��)��
�"����0��� 2��2��������*�����

� 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
��26��$
(

<��#�
+������$�(

7����� �
2
��,��$
+(

>��
+2�
2��$�(

=��'�>��

���2��$�(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

�,�����

	+��)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%������ '�� '���4����

���0�����?�� ����������%����
$%�����%�������&&9�E*-�9���%�(���

����%�������������������#�����?���4��
%00���������<��4��9��������� �7-)B�

�����0��� ��%�  �&�������%����
%���'������<��������������� ��'��
�����������3������������� ������%���

�����0����  �4������#��3������&�0
0���%��� �����5

������������� ����������


�����

-


�����

)

������

,


�����

)

+�����

�

�

-�

�

��52

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 3
�!0�����4���� ��
����
������� !�0���!!���
��������'� �! ��������0����� �����*�0������
���������
��6�����B������� �
�� 
���
!

���� �����B�
$��!��0�'!
���
����B��	9���B�.	9���B����!��0���������
��B��������6��"�B��
�0���
��!����B���������������B�'!

0

�!����B���
���������B����� �����B��� �K

2��2��������*�����

� ���������!�������

���������� �
���
����<
6B���0� 
�'���
�� 2���������,*�����

- 3
�!0�0����0�
�� 
�����!���0��
������''
��� 5�����������*�����

� 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�

������$�(

<��#�

������$6(

7����� �
�������$�(

>��

������$6(

=��'�>��
+������$,(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-������

	���8��#��#������ �+�
+����0�����
"������%��4��#�� 9��#��%���������%#��%� 

F�����%��*���� �������&�������<�
�0���������'�������������������

����������%#��%� �F�����%��*���� ��#��
�@� ������#'���%#�"������%��%����������

��%�����'���������4����������%����#�
�#���%��������0�'�3��0��5

����������+�� ���������



���2�

-

�+�2
�

��


���2�

-

�����

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

-��5

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� �������� �� ��!��
���
$�0���� 
������� �����
������%�0���� ���������������0���0����!������0� 2��2��������*�����

� +C���!���0��
����������
�0���� �����0��
��������������������0��
�!0���!������0��0�D�����������6�����!����0���$�������� �

�
�!0�������������0������$������������0��������6���
'�����������6�����!�����������
�!0�6�����!�����
����C���!��'
���� �


�0���� �� ���������+C���!���
'� �! �!���
���'
��0�����6�� �B������$�
�������B����$�
�������B�.
!����	
���
!�9��������������

��� �� ��B�0������
�B��� ����
�!0�6����0�������0��0�0����!��'
����������0���B�������6!����$���B�0���!!�B��� ����
�!0��!�
�6�

��0��

2��5�������*�����

- 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�

���2��$�(

<��#�
�+�2
��$+
(

7����� �

���2��$�(

>��
������$+(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-������

	�
�)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%� ���@����������#�

%����������� ���'����4�%��������0��
&&���0�����������%����%00��������

�0����������4��������� �����3� ���- ����
�����#�������������'�������������
�� ��3�������%#��@�������&&������

������������� ����������


�����

-


�����

)


�����

)

+�����

5

������

,

�����

�

�

-�

�

-��5


�����

-

+�����

2


�����

�

+�����

�

+�����

5

�����

�

�

-�

�

-��)


�����

-

+�����

�


�����

)

+�����

�


�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-��2

�����

�

�����

�

+�����

2

2�����

��

+�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

-��5

+�����

2

2�����

��


�����

�

+�����

5

�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

��-�


�����

-

������

��


�����

)

+�����

�

�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

���-

������

��


�����

)

+�����

�


�����

-

�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

��-�

)�%�����

���0�����4 �����

)�4 � ����

� �%����%���

A���������0��

���%�������

A���������

0����������

.�������

���� ���%'% ���

B@�����7-)B�

���0�����

.�����

�������������

� � � - � )

� 7��C��������� 7����� �0��#���C��������� C��������� =��'�C��������� 7D� ��� �4 ������/�����

�� ���������������$��������@��
��0������

��$�!
������!� ��
�� ����������6�����!���
�����

G�0�������������� "�����
'������

G�0������0�������������!��0������

	������������!���  !��'
�� 
���������0����

+C���0�8��+��������� 
��!��� �����$� ���

	������0������
���
�0������ ��
����
�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-������

	�+�E�������)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�������0���9
� �����������#������ ���'����4�%��

�����01��4���  ����4�%������#������%���
���0�����4����9���� ����3������D0��������

���������%�����

����������+,� ���������+

��6��

�

+6����

2

2+�,��

��

+,�6��

�

�����

�

�

��

�

��,5

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 3�!!
�6�

"������'�!!@���$��� 
������� 2�����������*�-���

� %$���!!�����	
���M��:���!��
�����$� �����
�������� 
���������$�B�6����
������� ��� 
�!0�6���00�0�
������� �0��1�$���

�  �����
����''����$������
��������0� ���6������
$�0���00�������4���� ��
����
������
�!0�6����!�'�!���0� 
�!0���0� �� 
���B

6�����'���!�0����������
�����0���
�6����0��
����� ����
�������������������'� �! ��������!!�6���� !�0�0����������
�����

G�0������������ ��� �!�/��0�� �������!�����6�
!���!� �� ��!���0���
�!0�6��0
����C��0���
��!��G�0�������������!��0�����
�

���
�������!���6������
�!0��!�
�6����!�'�!��+C���0����8��+�����$� ��� 
�!0���0� �� 
����0����0����
���
����0���� �����$� ��

������ !�0�0�

2��2��������*�����

- 8� 5��-�������*�����

<��# '
.0���#����4�

��6���$
(

.0���#����4��
+6�����$�(

��&&�%�����
2+�,���$
+(

7������������� 
���4�%��

+,�6���$,(

� <��# '�.0���#����4 � .0���#����4 � ��&&�%���� 7������������� ����4 �%�� >�%�����B������� ����4 �%�� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

--�����

	���- �������% ������'��������� ����4�%��
����#��%�0�����'���������������� �

 ������������% ��������)�-����.���'
���0������*�����0���1������ ���'

���4�%��������0�

����������
�� ���������+�

! /������� )���

� �����������������
 �������0���
�6������
$�0� ��)������,*�����

� ��� 2��)��������*�����

- ���������$��������0��00���
��!����
�� ����
���0� �����������$��������������.�!!����6�!��$����������!��0���0������ ��
�����$� ��

������''� �����

2��-������-*�����

� �����������$����
���0� ���������������
�!0�6������� ����0�6��!!� 2���������-*�����

) &�
��( 2�����������*�-���

5 �!������������� ��0�!�������
�����
��	���!�
��0���0�=�!���B������'�
����$�0�#��!0��� 2����������*�����

2 ����� 
���������-���6
$�� 2��2��������*�����

� ��
$�0��������0��0�D�0��!� ��
�� ����������������������$�������!� ���
��'
������6��������� ���!������������'
�����������������

��$�������00����� ��
���
���������!� ���
�������� ��!
 �!� 
�������
�0���� ��� 
�!0�6���00�0��4���$���
��������!�"������������4

0�$�!
��0������/

�!�������0�����������'� !�����'
����6�����!B��+�	B��	9��B��������
�B�#!

0�!���B�3��!��0B���0�7
 �!�O
����

6���0���F����������

2��5�������*�����

, :�$����������������� ! ! ��

�!
��B���0����� ���� �!������
���$�����
<� �� 2���������,*�����

�� 8� 5�����������*�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-������

	�2�)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����0���������������������
�

& ��%��� �&�%� ������%���'����9
��% �������#��B 0#�����	����'9�8��)� �?

C���%��/����4��9�H���  �)�09���%��<�
�0���������'������������������#��

.���'�&��%���5

����������+�� ���������


22�,��

�-

+2�
2�

2

+2�
2�

2

�����

�

�����

�

�

�,

�

����

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� �����������
������������ ��7��!�B��
��$����� �����0�'!

0��������������	
�����
�!0����� ��7��!������0�����0����
��
�0��

'!

0������0� 
����'
��������� �����
����

2�����������*-)���

� 8
���� ���''
�������6������$����
�����������������������'!

0� 
���
!�'� �! ���������	��
!������������
������
�!0�6����$����
���
��

'� �! �������������$��6�������!� ��0�

2��2��������*�����

- ����������!
�������������
<� ���0
��
��0��� �!�6���'���
��� 
������� 5�����������*�����

� 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
22�,���$
�(

<��#�
+2�
2��$�(

7����� �
+2�
2��$�(

=��'�>��
������$+(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

7�$�!

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-)�����

	�6�.����� ��0��4�0�������)�-���
.���'1���@�������& ��%��� �����%�����

��������%������������ �0����#���G


0�  ����#���#�+�+2��<���0��������
'������������������#���������&��#�

�@�������& ��%��� �&�%� �����5

����������+�� ���������


������

��

�
����

,

+2�
2�

2

��26�

�

��26�

�

�

�,

�

-�,2

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 3���
�������
�������
���
������������� ��������'� �! ��������0���
�����
������ 
�!0�6��������"��:���6�!�����
�����0�������������'��

�
��� 
��!��������������� ��

2��2��������*�����

� ���� 
�������6
$� 5�����������*�����

- 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
�������$

(

<��#�
�
�����$�(

7����� �
+2�
2��$�(

>��
��26��$
(

=��'�>��
��26��$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-5�����

	���)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����#�����& ��&��%������
�����0����� �%����3�#����&'� %� 

����%����&�������� �& ���������&�
�������� ����������C���������������

�%%��������������9��#��������0���:�����
������%����������&��:���0�������

�&�������<���0���������'��
��������������0������������#��& �

&��%������������05

����������+�� ���������


������

��

�
����

,

+2�
2�

2

��26�

�

��26�

�

�

�,

�

-�,2

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� ����#!

0�#
�� ���������
��������0���
��� !�0��
�������������0����0����6���������
���
$�0��6������ 
$��������0�'
�� ������

 ���6�!������

2��2��������*�����

� ���� 
�������6
$� 5�����������*�����

- 8� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
�������$

(

<��#�
�
�����$�(

7����� �
+2�
2��$�(

>��
��26��$
(

=��'�>��
��26��$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-2�����

	���)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�0��������%�

�����0��  ���&���#��.���'���������
�#��3������&���04���� �����3����%����

����������'���#���0�'��#�������%����
& ������<��4��9�������%������ '������%��4�

�����0��<���0���������'��
�������������������%��4�������0
0��������%�������0�����04�

3����%����&�0� %� ��������'�5

����������+�� ���������


66�
��

�5

+2�
2�

2


��+2�

)

�����

�

��26�

�

�

�,

�

����

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 3�� ������!� 
���� ��������
�"�
����!$��B�6�����$���� ��$�0�$����

0��������� ��'�
������	
�����4���
�!0���!���'�����	
���

 
�!0�0�$�!
��������
��!�6��$�����!
 ���
����������
����
������������
'�
�����<
��
6���� ��
�������0����
�6��$����

2��2��������*�����

� ��������0���
�6����'
 ����
$����'
����0������������������
���6�! ���
���������� ���!�����������'������0����������6!� 2����������*�-���

- �� 5��-�������*�����

=��'�<��#�
66�
���$
�(

<��#�
+2�
2��$�(

7����� �

��+2��$6(

=��'�>��
��26��$
(

� =��'�<��# <��# 7����� >� =��'�>� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-������

	�,�)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0����%� ���@����������#�
%��������������������0��������%�

�����0���&&���0��������� 
0��������%�������0����%00��������

�0����������4��������� �����3� ���- ����
�����#�������������'�������������
�� ��3�������%#��@�������&&������

������������� ����������

2�����

��


�����

-


�����

)


�����

)


�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

��)�

2�����

��

�����

�


�����

)

+�����

5


�����

�

�����

�

�

-�

�

��),

������

��


�����

�


�����

)


�����

-

+�����

5

�����

�

�

-�

�

��5�

�����

�


�����

-

������

��

�����

�

2�����

�-

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�2,

�����

�


�����

)

+�����

5

+�����

�

������

,

�����

�

�

-�

�

-�55

������

,


�����

)


�����

�


�����

)

+�����

5

�����

�

�

-�

�

��2,

-�4 �������0

��������

-�4 �������0

��������

-�4 ���

�������������

B�#��%���#�

�����0���

.�������

�����03������

.�������

�������������

� � � - � )

� 7��C��������� 7����� �0��#���C��������� C��������� =��'�C��������� 7D� ��� �4 ������/�����

��
$�0����
�����������!�$������

��
$�0����
��������� !�������<�������

��
$�0��0������
���
�0�
��!��� !�������

+���� �������������
6���� ��
�� !���������
�����

	��������������6��"����6�! �D���
����
�����

	��������0������
���
�0���������� ����
�����

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



�������	
������
���������������������
���������������

-,�����

	���E�������)�-����.���'����0�����
*�����0���1�������0�������0���9

� �����������#��������������
0��������%�������01��4���  ����4�%��
���#������%����& ��%��� ���������9

&�%� ��'�0��������%������& ��&��%�������

����������+�� ���������


�����

�


�����

�

22�,��

�-

�
����

,


���2�

-

�

�,

�

-�-�

! "�#���$� ��������%�&'( )���

� 8��0��
�
�����D���!!����� ������ ��)������,*�,���

� ����
$���!!������������
'�����%������
�����0���������� ����
��������!� "�����������$���!�
'���������
���'��F�������0

 
���������$�������������
'������C�������'!

0� 
���
!�'� �! ���������0���
���"���!� ���:��
$�!�
'���<
��'!
��
6���� ��
�����

������������6����$����

0B�6������ 
�!0�6���C���0�0��
��� !�0�������!����
$�!��
'��!!�
6���� ��
����%������������
$�0�����
��

��� �����3I4/��'��0���B�������
��!��������9��"����6�! �D���
����
��������!� "�������������
�!0�6���00�����0�'�����6�'
��

�00��������
��������$� ���!����0�

2��2��������*�����

- ���� 
����
���
$�0�� ��������
��������
�!0�6���$�!����0�����
�����6���'���
'���$����������.48/��6���'������� 
������� 5�����������*�����

� 8� 5��-�������*�����

.0���#����4��

������$2(

��&&�%�����
22�,���$
�(

7������������� 
���4�%��

�
�����$�(

>�%�����B������� 
���4�%��


���2��$�(

� <��# '�.0���#����4 � .0���#����4 � ��&&�%���� 7������������� ����4 �%�� >�%�����B������� ����4 �%�� ��� �4 ������/�����

&�
�!�6�!(

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
u

rv
ey

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

13
-1

4-
59

5 
: 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
S

u
rv

ey
 R

es
u

lt
s)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

O
ve

ra
ll

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

N
eu
tr
a
l

In
te
re
st
e
d

A
ve
ra
g
e

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
3

 t
o 

5

So
m

e 
In

te
re

st
2

 t
o 

3

La
ck

in
g 

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
0

 t
o 

2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
7

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
ll 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 g

ra
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
U

p
d

at
e 

o
ld

e
r 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 in
cl

u
d

e 
w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

R
e-

es
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
ap

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d

 f
lo

o
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l f

ac
ili

ti
es

.

Es
ta

b
lis

h
 s

ta
b

le
 f

u
n

d
in

g 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

u
yo

u
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

Ta
rg

et
 w

at
er

sh
e

d
-s

p
ec

if
ic

 b
u

yo
u

ts
 f

o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.

O
ff

e
r 

a 
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 f

lo
o

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l p
ro

je
ct

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

P
ar

t n
e

r 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 lo
ca

l w
at

er
sh

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

e
ff

o
rt

s.

C
re

at
e 

a 
co

m
p

le
te

ly
 r

eg
io

n
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
N

P
D

ES
 r

eq
u

ir
e

m
en

ts
.

C
re

at
e 

a 
G

IS
 d

at
ab

as
e

 f
o

r 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
ie

s.

En
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 W

at
e

r 
Q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 e

ac
h

 m
aj

o
r 

w
at

er
sh

e
d

.

En
h

an
ce

 w
at

e
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 b

o
th

 g
en

e
ra

l a
n

d
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 t

ra
in

in
g.

O
ff

e
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

b
as

ed
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s.

R
e d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

 m
ap

p
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

to
 1

0
 y

e
ar

s.

Im
p

le
m

en
t 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ap
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 u

p
d

at
e

 h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l, 
h

yd
ra

u
lic

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
m

o
d

el
s.

A
ss

is
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 L

O
M

R
 u

p
d

at
e

s.
En

h
an

ce
 d

ig
it

al
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 m

ap
s.

D
ec

re
as

e 
p

er
m

it
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

u
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e.

D
ev

e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 p

e
rm

it
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
.

U
p

d
at

e 
p

er
m

it
 t

ra
ck

in
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e.

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 w
et

la
n

d
 m

ap
s.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
cy

cl
e 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
au

d
it

s.

Ex
p

an
d

 N
P

D
ES

 p
er

m
it

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

C
re

at
e 

d
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 p

ro
gr

am
.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 t

e
le

vi
si

n
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 c

le
an

in
g/

je
tt

in
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 o

u
tl

e
t 

cl
ea

n
in

g.

En
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

 c
le

ar
in

g 
p

ro
gr

am
.

C
re

at
e 

a 
st

re
am

b
an

k 
st

ab
ili

za
ti

o
n

 p
ro

gr
am

.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.

R
ad

ar
 P

lo
t 

Ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
In

te
re

st
  

In
te

re
st

ed
N

e
u

tr
al

A
ve

ra
ge

M
a

jo
ri

ty
 I

n
te

re
st

3
 t

o
 5

S
om

e
 I

n
te

re
st

2
 t

o
 3

L
a

ck
in

g
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 I
n

te
re

st
0

 t
o

 2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
8

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n

La
rg

e
 4

0
,0

0
0

<

M
e

d
iu

m
 2

0,
00

0
-4

0
,0

00

Sm
al

l <
2

0,
0

00

N
eu

tr
a

l

In
te

re
st

e
d

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
3

 t
o 

5

So
m

e 
In

te
re

st
2

 t
o 

3

La
ck

in
g 

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
0

 t
o 

2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
9

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
ll 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 g

ra
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
U

p
d

at
e 

o
ld

e
r 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 in
cl

u
d

e 
w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

R
e -

es
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
ap

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d

 f
lo

o
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l f

ac
ili

ti
es

.

E s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

ta
b

le
 f

u
n

d
in

g 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

u
yo

u
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

T a
rg

et
 w

at
er

sh
e

d
-s

p
ec

if
ic

 b
u

yo
u

ts
 f

o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.

O
ff

e
r 

a 
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 f

lo
o

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l p
ro

je
ct

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

P
a r

t n
e

r 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 lo
ca

l w
at

er
sh

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

e
ff

o
rt

s.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
co

m
p

le
te

ly
 r

eg
io

n
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
N

P
D

ES
 r

eq
u

ir
e

m
en

ts
.

C
re

at
e 

a 
G

IS
 d

at
ab

as
e

 f
o

r 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
ie

s.

E n
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 W

at
e

r 
Q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 e

ac
h

 m
aj

o
r 

w
at

er
sh

e
d

.

E n
h

an
ce

 w
at

e
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 b

o
th

 g
en

e
ra

l a
n

d
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 t

ra
in

in
g.

O
ff

e
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

b
as

ed
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s.

R
e d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

 m
ap

p
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

to
 1

0
 y

e
ar

s.

Im
p

l e
m

en
t 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ap
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 u

p
d

at
e

 h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l, 
h

yd
ra

u
lic

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
m

o
d

el
s.

A
s s

is
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 L

O
M

R
 u

p
d

at
e

s.
E n

h
an

ce
 d

ig
it

al
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 m

ap
s.

D
e c

re
as

e 
p

er
m

it
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

u
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e.

D
e v

e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 p

e
rm

it
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
.

U
p

d
at

e 
p

er
m

it
 t

ra
ck

in
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e.

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 w
et

la
n

d
 m

ap
s.

C
re

at
e 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
cy

cl
e 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
au

d
it

s.

E x
p

an
d

 N
P

D
ES

 p
er

m
it

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

C
re

a t
e 

d
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 p

ro
gr

am
.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 t

e
le

vi
si

n
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 c

le
an

in
g/

je
tt

in
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 o

u
tl

e
t 

cl
ea

n
in

g.

E n
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

 c
le

ar
in

g 
p

ro
gr

am
.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
st

re
am

b
an

k 
st

ab
ili

za
ti

o
n

 p
ro

gr
am

.

C
re

at
e 

a 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.

R
a d

ar
 P

lo
t 

Ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
In

te
re

st
 b

y 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 L

ar
ge

 4
0

,0
0

0
<

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 M
ed

iu
m

 2
0

,0
0

0
-4

0
,0

0
0

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 S
m

al
l <

2
0

,0
0

0
In

te
re

st
ed

N
e

u
tr

al

M
a

jo
ri

ty
 I

n
te

re
st

3
 t

o
 5

S
om

e
 I

n
te

re
st

2
 t

o
 3

L
a

ck
in

g
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 I
n

te
re

st
0

 t
o

 2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
00

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

W
a
te
rs
h
e
d

D
e

s 
P

la
in

e
s

E
as

t 
B

ra
n

ch

Fo
x 

R
iv

e
r

Sa
lt

 C
re

e
k

W
es

t 
B

ra
n

ch

N
eu

tr
a

l

In
te

re
st

e
d

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
3

 t
o 

5

So
m

e 
In

te
re

st
2

 t
o 

3

La
ck

in
g 

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
0

 t
o 

2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
01

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
ll 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 g

ra
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
U

p
d

at
e 

o
ld

e
r 

w
at

er
sh

ed
 p

la
n

s 
to

 in
cl

u
d

e 
w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

R
e -

es
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
ap

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
n

ew
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d

 f
lo

o
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l f

ac
ili

ti
es

.

E s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

ta
b

le
 f

u
n

d
in

g 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 b

u
yo

u
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

T a
rg

et
 w

at
er

sh
e

d
-s

p
ec

if
ic

 b
u

yo
u

ts
 f

o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.

O
ff

e
r 

a 
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 f

lo
o

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l p
ro

je
ct

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

.

P
a r

t n
e

r 
w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 lo
ca

l w
at

er
sh

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

e
ff

o
rt

s.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
co

m
p

le
te

ly
 r

eg
io

n
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 f
o

r 
N

P
D

ES
 r

eq
u

ir
e

m
en

ts
.

C
re

at
e 

a 
G

IS
 d

at
ab

as
e

 f
o

r 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
ie

s.

E n
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 W

at
e

r 
Q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

p
ro

gr
am

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 e

ac
h

 m
aj

o
r 

w
at

er
sh

e
d

.

E n
h

an
ce

 w
at

e
r 

q
u

al
it

y 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 b

o
th

 g
en

e
ra

l a
n

d
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 t

ra
in

in
g.

O
ff

e
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y-

b
as

ed
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s.

R
e d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 f

lo
o

d
p

la
in

 m
ap

p
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

to
 1

0
 y

e
ar

s.

Im
p

l e
m

en
t 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ap
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.
M

ai
n

ta
in

 a
n

d
 u

p
d

at
e

 h
yd

ro
lo

gi
ca

l, 
h

yd
ra

u
lic

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

 q
u

al
it

y 
m

o
d

el
s.

A
s s

is
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 L

O
M

R
 u

p
d

at
e

s.
E n

h
an

ce
 d

ig
it

al
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
 m

ap
s.

D
e c

re
as

e 
p

er
m

it
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

u
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e.

D
e v

e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 p

e
rm

it
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
.

U
p

d
at

e 
p

er
m

it
 t

ra
ck

in
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e.

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 w
et

la
n

d
 m

ap
s.

C
re

at
e 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
cy

cl
e 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
au

d
it

s.

E x
p

an
d

 N
P

D
ES

 p
er

m
it

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

C
re

a t
e 

d
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 p

ro
gr

am
.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 t

e
le

vi
si

n
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
st

o
rm

 s
ew

er
 c

le
an

in
g/

je
tt

in
g.

P
ro

vi
d

e 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 o

u
tl

e
t 

cl
ea

n
in

g.

E n
h

an
ce

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

am
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

 c
le

ar
in

g 
p

ro
gr

am
.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
st

re
am

b
an

k 
st

ab
ili

za
ti

o
n

 p
ro

gr
am

.

C
re

at
e 

a 
d

et
en

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

.

R
a d

ar
 P

lo
t 

Ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
In

te
re

st
 b

y 
W

at
e

rs
h

e
d

 
 

D
e s

 P
la

in
e

s
F o

x 
R

iv
e

r
E a

st
 B

ra
n

ch
S a

lt
 C

re
e

k
W

es
t 

B
ra

n
ch

In
te

re
st

ed
N

e
u

tr
al

M
a

jo
ri

ty
 I

n
te

re
st

3
 t

o
 5

S
om

e
 I

n
te

re
st

2
 t

o
 3

L
a

ck
in

g
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 I
n

te
re

st
0

 t
o

 2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
02

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

D
e

cr
e

as
e

p
e

rm
it

 r
e

vi
ew

tu
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
ti

m
e

.

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
e

le
ct

ro
n

ic

p
e

rm
it

su
b

m
it

ta
l

p
ro

gr
am

.

U
p

d
at

e
p

e
rm

it

tr
a

ck
in

g
so

ft
w

a
re

.

U
p

d
at

e
 a

n
d

m
ai

n
ta

in

w
et

la
n

d
m

ap
s.

C
re

a
te

 a
re

g
u

la
r 

cy
cl

e

fo
r

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
au

d
it

s.

E
xp

a
n

d
N

PD
ES

 p
e

rm
it

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

se
rv

ic
e

s.

C
re

a
te

d
e

te
n

ti
o

n

p
o

n
d

in
sp

e
ct

io
n

p
ro

gr
am

.

W
ai

ve
r 

St
at

u
s

C
o

m
p

le
te

N
o

n

P
ar

ti
a

l

N
eu

tr
a

l

In
te

re
st

e
d

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
3

 t
o 

5

So
m

e 
In

te
re

st
2

 t
o 

3

La
ck

in
g 

M
aj

or
it

y 
In

te
re

st
0

 t
o 

2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
03

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

3
.5

4
.0

4
.5

5
.0

D
ec

re
as

e 
p

er
m

it
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

u
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e.

D
ev

e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 p

e
rm

it
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
.

U
p

d
at

e 
p

er
m

it
 t

ra
ck

in
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e.

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 w
et

la
n

d
 m

ap
s.

C
re

a t
e 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
cy

cl
e 

fo
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
au

d
it

s.

Ex
p

an
d

 N
P

D
ES

 p
er

m
it

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 s

e
rv

ic
es

.

C
re

a t
e 

d
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 p

o
n

d
 in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 p

ro
gr

am
.

R
ad

ar
 P

lo
t 

Ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

P
ro

gr
am

 C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t 
In

te
re

st
 b

y 
W

ai
ve

r 
St

at
u

s  
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

N
o

n
P

ar
t i

al
In

te
re

st
ed

N
e

u
tr

al

M
a

jo
ri

ty
 I

n
te

re
st

3
 t

o
 5

S
om

e
 I

n
te

re
st

2
 t

o
 3

L
a

ck
in

g
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 I
n

te
re

st
0

 t
o

 2

10
.A

.b

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
04

Attachment: Program Assessment Survey Results  (13-14-595 : Program Assessment Survey Results)



 
 
 
 
 
 

December 12, 2014 

Anthony J. Charlton, Director,  
DuPage County Stormwater Management 
Jack T. Knuepfer Bldg. 
421 N. County Farm Road 
Wheaton, IL 60187 

Re: DuPage County Stormwater Management Program Assessment 

 

Dear Mr. Charlton:  

On behalf of the 33 member municipalities of the DuPage Mayors and Managers 
Conference, we appreciate your work on the draft Stormwater Management 
Program Assessment and the opportunity to provide comments.   

The importance of current, accurate floodplain maps cannot be stressed enough.  
A common issue raised by municipal officials is the value of correcting outdated 
or erroneous map information.  Resolving discrepancies in existing maps and 
implementing a transparent, formal, and regular map maintenance program, 
whereby the maps can be kept reasonably current, are high priorities.  It is also 
essential to implement a process that better accounts for and implements 
municipal input and data.  As you know, past efforts to resolve differences in data 
between the County’s proposal and municipal information have at times been 
very time consuming and challenging. 

Transparency through communication and outreach is also a high priority.  
Ensuring clear communication of County stormwater initiatives through 
substantial municipal outreach will keep stakeholders informed and help ensure 
smooth implementation.  Additionally, more substantial outreach explaining how 
to access County assistance and how priorities are determined will give 
municipalities and residents greater opportunities to know what is available to 
them, including funding options, and assist in their stormwater management goals. 

The County Stormwater Program has successfully met the core service needs of 
municipalities.  While implementation of higher levels of service is always 
desired, such decisions must be made with knowledge of the increased costs and 
method of funding.  In addition, municipal response to funding options will likely 
be dependent on the procedures for determining where funds will be spent for 
projects such as revised floodplain mapping, watershed studies, and flood control 
projects. A prioritization or selection process that shows funding is distributed in 
a fair and equitable manner, and prioritizes spending throughout all watersheds in 

DUPAGE MAYORS AND MANAGERS CONFERENCE 
an association of municipalities representing 1,000,000 people 
 
1220 Oak Brook Road 
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523 
(630) 571-0480 
Fax: (630) 571-0484 
 

MEMBER  
MUNICIPALITIES 

Addison 

Aurora 

Bartlett 

Bensenville 

Bloomingdale 

Bolingbrook 

Burr Ridge 

Carol Stream 

Clarendon Hills 

Downers Grove 

Elmhurst 

Glendale Heights 

Glen Ellyn 

Hanover Park 

Hinsdale 

Itasca 

Lisle 

Lombard 

Naperville 

Oak Brook 

Oakbrook Terrace 

Roselle 

Schaumburg 

Villa Park 

Warrenville 

Wayne 

West Chicago 

Westmont 

Wheaton 

Willowbrook 

Winfield 

Wood Dale 

Woodridge 

 

 

 

Founded June 19, 1962 



the County, is critical. This is preferable to a system that continually collects 
funds in areas of the County which rarely receive benefits from County 
stormwater projects.  Our members strongly urge that additional municipal input 
on the scope of the County’s Stormwater Management Program be sought after 
the costs and funding issues are more defined.  

DMMC appreciates the opportunity to participate in the development of 
stormwater management goals that meet the needs of DuPage municipalities and 
residents.  Please let us know if we can assist with any additional information. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Martin Tully 
President, DuPage Mayors and Managers Conference 
Mayor, Village of Downers Grove 

Cc: James Zay, DuPage County Board; Chair, Stormwater Management Cmte. 
Municipal members of the DuPage County Stormwater Management Committee 
DMMC Mayors/Presidents; Managers/Administrators 




	4A - DuPage County Storwmater Program Assessment Survey, 2014.pdf
	10-7-2014 DPC Stormwater Committee Agenda - Part 1
	Pages from 10-7-2014 DPC Stormwater Committee Agenda - Part 2

	4B - 2014-12-9_DMMC Comments on Stormwater Management Program v 4.pdf
	MEMBER
	DUPAGE MAYORS AND MANAGERS CONFERENCE




